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Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the Members of Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (‘the
Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, the Statement of Profit and Lass (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the
year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the
effects of the matier described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and
give a frue and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards {ind AS'} specified under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the siate of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its profit
(including other comprehensive income), its cash fiows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As described in Note 27 B fo the accompanying financial statements, the Company has not recognised input
tax credit receivable under Goods and Servica Tax Act, 2017 (‘the GST Act’) as at 31 March 2022 pertaining to
earlier years aggregating to Rs 16.82 crores, treating such balances as ‘contingent assets’ as per Ind AS 37-
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets on account of uncertainty assessed by the
management, as explained in the said note. However, considering the provisions of the GST Act, rules
thereunder and circulars issued by the Central Board of indirect Taxes and Customs, and in view of the
accounting policy adopted by the Company for similar transactions and claims in the current year with effect
from 1 April 2021, in our opinion, the aforesaid balances should have been recognised as ‘assets recoverable
from government authorities’ and disclosed as ‘Balance with government authorities’ under ‘Cther current
assets' in the accompanying financial statements with corresponding income recognised in the current year as
exceptional item in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Accordingly, had the Company recognised such assets as
aforesaid, exceptional income and profit before tax for the year ended 31 March 2022 would have been higher
by INR 16.82 crores, and balance with government authorities (under Note 6) as at 31 March 2022, would have
been higher by INR 16.82 crores.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143{10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india ('1CAI') together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other sthical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified opinion.
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Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention towards the Note 39 of the financial statemenis, which describes the uncertainties due to the
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and management's evaluation of the impact on the operations and on the
aforesaid Financial Statements of the Company as at the reporting date, the extent of which is significantly
dependent on the future developments as they evolve. Our opinien is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director's Report including Annexures to Director's Report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing fo report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’'s Board of Directors. The
Company's Board of Directors are respansible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high leve! of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reascnably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

(This space has been intentionally left blank}
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As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(j) of the Act we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls sysiem with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management;

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’'s use of the going concern hasis of accounting and,
pased on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt oh the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we canclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's repori to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation;

«  (Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of the Company to express
an opinion on the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statemnent that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought o bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2021 were audited by the predecessor
auditor, Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, who have expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements
vide their audit report dated 6 May 2021.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that the provisions'of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not
applicable to the Company since the Company is not a public company as defined under section 2(71) of the
Act, Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A a statement on the matters spegcified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Ordaer, to the extent applicable.
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17. Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we report,
to the extent applicable, that:

a)

b

~

1)
~

d

~—F

e

—

g)

We have sought and except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, obtained
all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit of the accempanying financial statements;

Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, in our opinion,
proper hooks of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books;

The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, in our opinion,
the aforesaid financial statements comply with ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being appointed as a director
in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company as on 31 March 2022 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed a modified opinion; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. the Company, as detailed in note 27 A to the financial statements, has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2022,

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2022,

iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2022,

iv. a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any person or entity, including foreign entities (‘the
intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ('the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like en behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person or entity, including fareign entities ('the Funding Parties’),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether -
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

{This space has been intentionally left blank}
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¢. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the management
representations under sub-clauses {a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

v.  The dividend declared or paid during the year ended 31 March 2022 by the Company is in compliance
with section 123 of the Act.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm'’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

T
Deepak Mittal B,
Partner &ﬂg .t
Membership No.: 503843 ~£Accois-
UDIN: 22503843AINQDJ5011

Place: New Delhi
Date: 06 May 2022
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 16 of the Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the
members of Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2022

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audii, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

M @

{b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

{A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets).

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assefs,

The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment under which the assets are physically verified once in every two years, which,
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. In accordance with this program, property, plant and equipment were verified
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not own any immovable property (including investment properties)
{other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order
is net applicable to the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (and Right of Use assets)
or intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(il (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals

{b)

during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each
class of inventory were noticed.

The Gompany has a working capital limit in excess of Rs 5 crore sanctioned by banks based on
the security of current assets during the year. The quarterly returns/statements, in respect of the
working capital limits have been filed by the Company with such banks and such returns/
statements are in agreement with the books of account of the Company for the respective
periods, which were subjected to review.

(This space has been intentionally leff blank)
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 16 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2022

(it} (a) The Company has provided loan to a company. The details of the same are given below:

iv}

v)

(vi)

(vii)(a)

Chartered Accountams

{Amount in Rs. crores

Particulars Guarantees | Security Loans Advances in
nature of
loans

Aggregate amount during the year
- Subsidiaries - - - -
- Joint Ventures - - - -
- Associates - - - -
- Others - - 67.00 -
Balance outstanding as at balance
sheet date

- Subsidiaries - -
- Joint Ventures -
- Associates -
- Others h - 67.00 -

(b} The Company has not made any investment, provided any guarantee or given any
security during the year and terms and conditions of the grant of loans and advances
in the nature of loans provided are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the Company’s
interest.

(c) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal
and payment of interest has been stipulated and principal and interest amount are not
due for repayment currently.

(d) There is no overdue amount in respect of loans granted to such companies, firms, LLPs
or other parties.

{e) The Gompany has not granted any loan or advance in the nature of loan which has
fallen due during the year. further, no fresh loans were granted to any party to setile
the overdue loans/advances in nature of loan.

(i The Company has not granted any loan or advances in the nature of loan, which are
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of loans. Further, the Company
has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185 and section 186 of the Act in
respect of Investments, guarantees and security.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or there is no amount which has been considered
as deemed deposit within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies
{Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, repomng under clause 3(v} of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section
{1} of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company's products/business activity,
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{vi} of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof were autstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 16 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2022

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities
on account of any dispute except for the following:

Name Nature of Gross Amount paid Period to Forum where

of the dues Amount | under Protest which the dispute is pending
statute (Rs. in (Rs. in amount

crores) crores) relates

Income | Income tax 0.36 036 1 AY 2016-17 Assessing Officer
tax Act,
1961
Income | Income tax 0.33 0.07 | AY 2017-18 Commissioner of
tax Act, Income tax
1961 {Appeals)
Income | Income tax 1.66 0.33 | AY 2018-19 Commissioner of
tax Act, Income tax
1961 (Appeals)

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of its joans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to lender.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received
from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender.

(e) In our opinion and according fo the information and explanations given to us, money raised
by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has net raised any funds on short term basis during the year or in any previous year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix) (d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix}{e) and clause
3(ix{f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) {8) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x}{(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

{(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no

fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered
by our audit.
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 16 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2022

{b) No report under section 143{12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government for the
period covered by our audit.

(¢} According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xiiy The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(i) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188
of the Act, where applicable. Further, the details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements, as required under Indian Accounting Standard (ind AS) 24,
Related Parly Disclosures specified in Companies {indian Accounting Standards} Rules 2015 as
prescribed under secticn 133 of the Act.

{xiv) {a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system as required under section 138 of the Act which is commensurate with the
size and nature of its business.

{b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the
period under audit.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash ltransactions with its directors or persons connected with them and accordingly,
provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable o the Company.

(xvl) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year but had incurred cash losses
amounting to Rs. 28,16 Crores in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and based on the information
and explanations given to us by the management and the response to our communication with the
outgoing auditors, there have been no issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing
auditors.

{xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
ather information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board
of Directors and management, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report that Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any unspent
amount in respect of any ongoing or other than ongoing project as at the expiry of the financial
year. Accordingly, reporling under clause 3(xx} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 16 of the independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2022

(xxi) The reporting under clause (xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of financial statements of the
Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Deepak Mittal
Partner
Membership No.: 503843

Place: New Delhi
Date; 06 May 2022
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Annexure B

independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited {‘the
Company') as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Infernal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control on financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘ICAI). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including
adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the internal Financial Controls with Reference te Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') prescribed under Section 143(10} of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Nole') issued by
the ICAl Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial staiements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial
contrals, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due {o fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified audit opinion on the Company's interna!l financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference fo Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a pracess designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflact the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary o permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Delhi Duty Free
Services Private Limited, on the financial statements far the year ended 31 Wlarch 2022

Inherent Limitations of [nternal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstaiements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material
weakness has been identified in the operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements as at 31 March 2022;

a) The Company's internal financial controls system over recognition of input tax credit receivable under the
Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 as fully explained in note 27 B to the accompanying financial statements
were not operating effectively, that has resulted in a material misstatement in the carrying value of other
current assets and its resultant impact on exceptional income, profit before tax, other equity and related
disclosures in the accompanying financial statements.

A 'material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal controls with reference: to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note the ICAl and except for the effects/ possible effects of the material weakness described above
on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022.

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported above in determining the nature, timing, and
extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended
31 March 2022, and the material weakness has affected our opinion on the financial statements of the Company
and we have issued a modified opinion on the financial statements.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountanis
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

&

Deepak Mittal
Partner .
Membership No.: 503843 N&o o
UDIN: 2250384 3AINQDJB01 T~

Place: New Delhi
Date: 06 May 2022

Chartered Accountams




Delhi Duty Free Serviees Private Limited (CIN : US2399DL2Z0JYITC 191963)

Balance Sheet as at March 3%, 2022
(Amount in Rupees erore, unless atherwise stated)

Nates Asat Asat
March 34, 2022 March 31, 2021
ASSETS
Non-current asseis
Property, plant and eguipment 3 26,59 EERE
Capital work-in-progress 3 0.58 73
Right-of-use assels 3 73.90 97.84
Intangible assels 4 47.66 64.77
Financial assels
(i) Loans 5A 67.00 -
{1} Others - linancial assels 1] 181,50 167.27
Deferred tax assets {net) 16 18,08 19.60
lucene 1ix assels (et) 2,34 2.10
Othier nen-current assets ] 0.00 0.71
Total noi-current assets 417.95 391,36
Current nssets
Lnventories 7 0344 102.81
Financial assels
(i) Trade receivables - -
{ii} Cash and cash equivalents 8 67.65 12.35
(iii} Bank balance other than (i) above 8A 14,43 0.43
(v} Other financial assels 5B 49.55 28.67
Other current assets o 77.52 512
Total current assets 302,59 149,58
Total assels 720.54 540,94
EQUITY AND LTABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 9 80.00 80.00
Olher equity 1{1] 390.09 249,67
Tatal equity $70.09 329.67
Lisbilities
Now-current tinbilities
Financial liabilities
{i} Borrowings 13 0.42 9.0}
{i{} Lease Liabilities 34 55.00 80.69
Provisions 15 6,16 5.84
Total non-current liabilities 61,58 95.54
Current liahilitles
Financial liabilities
{{} Borrowinus it 3.59 22,13
(1) Lease liabilities 34 25.88 19,i9
(iii} Trade pavables 12
{1 Total ealstanding dues of micro enlerrises and small enterprises 2.50 0,99
(b} Total outstanding dues of cradilors other thar micro enterprises and small enterprises L19.10 60.62
{iv) Other firancial lHabilities 13 16.65 4,19
Other current liabilisies E] 9.51 603
Provisions 13 0.99 .79
Current tax linbilities {nei) 5,65 1.79
Tatak curvent abilities 188.87 115,73
Total equity and liahilitics 720.54 340.94
Sumenary of signitficant accounting pollcies 2.1

See accompanying notes torming part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

Fer Walker Clhandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

[C AT Firm Repistration Mot 001076N/NSO001S

Deepnk Mittat
Partner
Membership No: 503843

Place: Guruyram
Date: May 6, 2022

For and on belalf of the Board of Dirvectors of
Dethi Duty Free Services Private Limited

W

Director Direefor
DIN DIN

Place: New Deili
Date: May 6, 2022

“hief Finaneial officer

Company Secretary
Place: New Dethi
Dalte: May &, 2022




Delbi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : US2599DLZ009PTC191963)
Statement of Protit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount In Rupees crore, unless otherwlse stated)

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
Ao Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
INCOMNE
. Revenue from operations 17 643.95 272,23
11, Other income i8 32.67 35.61
ML Total Income (1 + [T) 678.62 307.84
EXPENSES
Purchases of stock-in-lrade (nel of returns Rs. Nil. Previous year Rs 31.86 Crores) 228 85 1.00
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 19 9137 108.83
Employee benelits expense 20 3344 2848
Depreciation and amortization expense 21 56,99 43.37
Finance cosls 22 13,83 5.68
Concession Fees 201.20 100.61
Otler expenses 23 71.59 55.45
IV, Total expenses 612,29 347,42
V. Profit/{1.oss) before exceptional item & tax (LH-1Y) 66.33 (39.58)
V1. Exceptionat [iems
Refund of GST (Refer note 27 B) 180.43 -
V1. Prafit{loss) before tax (VY1) 246.76 (39.58)
VI11, Tax expense: .
Current Tax 16 56.93 -
Deferred Tax 16 1.49 (9.44)
1X. Profit/{Loss) for the year (YIEVIHD 188.34 (3018
X, Other comprehensive income (GCI)
A Items that will not be reclassilied to profit or loss
Re-measurement of defined henefit plans Gl 0.38
[ncome tax relating to Hems that will not be reclassified to profit and ©.03) {010}
loss
Total other comprehensive income 1.8 0,28
XI. Total comprebensive income/(fess) for the year (IN+X}) E88.42 (29.86)
X1, Eamings/{Loss) per share (tace value Rs. 10 per shave): 24
(1) Basic (in Rs.} 2354 (3.77)
() Dilated (in Rs.) 23,54 .77
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.2
See accompanying notes forming part of the Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached
For Wallker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
[CAI Firm Reglstration No: N300013
Tip,
&
) 5
o\ N
2| 5
Deepak Mittal Srs;‘\ L Director Direc
Partner Tt 7 DIN DIN
NMembership No; 503843 Qi . Place: Mew Delhi Piace: New Delhi
Date: May 6, 2022 Date: May 6, 2022

] HiiekFinancial officer Comjfany Seeretary
Place: New Deihi Place: New Delhi
Date: May 6. 2022 Date: May 6. 2022

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 6, 2022



Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : US25900L2009PTC 191963)
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in Rupees erore, unless otherwise stated)

For the year entbed
March M, 2622

For the year encled
March M, 2021

A Cash Aew from operating activities
Profit: (Loss) before 1ax 24676 {39.38)
Adjustnient to reconcile profid befove tax to uet cash flows
Depreciation and amentization expense 3699 43.37
Met {pain) Joss on sale - discard of Property. Plaul and Equipnient inciuding Capilal work in progress {00 0.4y
Unwinding of discounts on secarity deposits given {15.90) (16.97)
Unrealized Foreign exchange {zain) loss {nel) 133 {0.82)
Gaiiz on hedyed item reclassified Lo profit or loss account from cash flow hedge reserve - {171y
Tntevest income (2,194 10,17)
Finance cosls 10.85 9.68
Provision for bad and doubtfil receivables (net) 0.99 0,28
Liability no longer required written back (1.99) (0.22)
Provision for stock Toss {033 333
Lease Lability written back 13.67) (6.33)
Operadlng profit before working capital changes 286.34 {18,65)
Movements inworking capital:
([ncrease)'decrease in invenlores 10.21 105,50
{ncreaseydecrease in financial non-financial assels (37,98} 14.68
Increase-(decrease) in trade payables and other financial non-financial Habilities 63.27 {43.71)
Increase (decrease) in provisions G4 0.79)
Cash generated from operations 27428 5,03
Less: Direct 1ax paid {net of refinds) {3330 (0,15}
Ned casle low from operaling activities (A) 22098 54.68

B Casle llew fram Jnvestlag activities:
Capita! expendilure on Property, Plant and Equipment (after adjustment of increase decrease in capital work-in-progress and
advances for capital expenditure} and Intangible assels (2.90) (L9
Proceeds fiom sale of property. planl and equipnent 000 -
Loan given to related party 67.00) -
Interest received 0.96 oz
Bank balanves {including nan-cument} nol considered as cosh and cash equivatent (et} (13.:42) (0.0
Net cash flow used ln Envesting activities (13) (82,36) {1.08)

C Net cash (low from fisascing activities:
Finance costs paid (4.00} {6.32)
Interin: dividend paid on equity shares 3371 -
Repayment of tease lability [23.62) (6,33)
Repeyment of long tenn bonowings (10.86) {2315}
Proceeds from long term bomrowings - 1.77
Net decrease in short-leny borrowings (11.27) (13.39)
Ned cash flow used in fisancing activities { C) (83.52) “7.59
Net increase i cash and cash equlvalents (A+B+C) 3510 6,01
Cash and cash equivalents at beginting of 1he year 1255 G54
Cash aml eash equivalents a1 end of 4le year 67,65 £2,55

Asat Asal
Cash and cash cquivalents March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balances with banks:
- in cucrent accounts 399 1.10
- it EEFC accotints 9,539 995
Cash in hand 4.07 1.50
Deposits with original maturity of less than three menths 30.00 -
Total eash and cash equivatlents §1.68 12.55
Note:

1. Previous year liyures have been regrouped. where necessary 1o confonm to cumrent year's classification.
2 The above Cash Flow has been prepared umder the ‘ludirect Method' as st out ia the Ind AS-7 on Statements of Cash Flow .

Sce accompanying noles lorming part of the Financiat Statements

As per our report of even dale attached
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountanls

{CAF Firm Registration No: 00107

Fer and n# beliadl of the Deard of Dircctors o
Deltii Duty Free Services Private Limbgl

W

¢ Director Director
Deepak Alittat DN DIN
Partner Flace: New Dell Place: New Delhd

Membership No: 503843

Phace: Gurigram
Dale: May &, 2022

Date: May 6. 2

Date: May 6, 2002

e

Compaey Sceretary
Place: New Dethi
Dale: May 6. 2022

. {el Financial oflicer
Pia‘b\e‘. New Delhi
Dalgt May 6. 2022
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Belli Pty Free Services Private Limited (C1N 5 F990L2009PTCLS1961)
Notes to Fi af Statements Tor the year ended March 31, 2022
{Amaunt in Rupees crore, uless athersise sintedd)

Corpovate information

Pelhi Dty Free Servives Privaie Limited ("the Company™ ) is 2 private limited company domietled in ladia and is incorporated nnder the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in india. The Company is a joint
enture between Delhi Intermational Aivport Limited, Yalorvin Limited and GAIR Alrports Limited aind is primanily engaged in the business ol operating duty free shops a1 intermalional airport in Delld. The Company
n Delivi by Belli Tntematienat Airport Limited. The registered ofttee of the Company is

was awarded 1he license to manage and operate the Duty Free Shops at Taminal 1, Indir Gandhi litermational AimonttiGl:
Jocaied al Building No. 31, Greund Floor, Opp. Tenninal-3, IGEA. New Delhi-1 10037,

The Financial Statements were appeoved for issue by the Company's board ol direciors on May 06, 2022,
Significant accawsming palicks

Busis of preparatian
(1) The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with te Indian Accounting Standanls ¢Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Tndian Acco ating
Standards) Rules, 2015, a5 amended from time to time, other accounting prineiples generally accepted in ladia and presentation requirement of division 11 of schedule 11 1o the Companics Act, 2013 (Ind AR
compliant Schechale {1ty as applicable to the financial statements, The accounling policies followed in preparation of the Finsneial Stagements are consistent with those tollowed in the preparation ol Finane ]
Stalements for the year caded Mareh 31, 2021 except where 2 newly issued accounting standard is mitially adopled or a revision to an exisling accounting standard requires a change in the accounting pelicy bi

inuse

(i) The Financial Statements have been prapared on the historival cost basis, excepl for certaln instaments ot have been measured at B value al the end ol the reporting perivl. (as explaioed in accounting policy
instnnnents).

regarding Hnancial

Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (*INIC) anel all the values are roundvd 1o the ngarest Crore (INR OIWIILND, except when othenvise indicated.

(i} The Finanei

Summary of signifieant accounting poticies

Property. plant gl equipmens

ation angl impatmenl Toss, iTasy, Historical cost inchides supenditiee that is directly attributable 1o the acquisition of

Pivperty. plant and cquipmient are stated at historieal cost kess accumulated depreciation-ams
the items,

Capitat work in progress includes cost of property, plant amd equipment under installasionsinder development as at the batance sheet date,

Subsequent costs are incliled in the asset's carmying amowit or recognised as 1 separale assel, as appropriate, enly when it is probable that futnre cconomic benefits associzted with the item will ffow 1o the company
and she cost of the item can be measured refiably. The camying amount of any component accounted for as a seperate assels ane derevognised when replaced. Further, when <ach majer inspection Is pertorned, ils cast
s recognised in the carrying amount of the ilem of property, plant and equipment as a replacenient i (he recognition criteria are satisfied, All other repairs ad maintenance are charged Lo prefit and loss during the
reporting peried in which they are incured.

enised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future ecosomic benetits are expected from iis use or disposal. Ay gain or loss arising
ed.

An item of property, plant and equipmenl and any significant pant initially rev
on derecognition of the assel {enleuiated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of thie asset) is included in the Statzment of Profit and Loss when the assel is dererog

Thie residual values, usefid lives and methods of deprociation-amortization of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each period end and adjusted prospectively, H appropriate.

Depreciation/Amortization on Property, plant and equipment

(i} Depreciation on Propeny, plant and equipment bas been provided on a pro-rata basis 1o the peried of use under the straight Tine method over the estimated usefiit lives of each asset as delennined by the
management. b accordance with Part A of Schertule I of the Companivs Act, 2013, in respect of following assets . ke company, based on technical evaliation, believes that the usctul Hie of such assets is
it trom the uselis) life specified in Schedule 1] 1o The Companies Act 2013 and adopled the useful life of such assets accordingly,

Cateparies Uselul LIfe (SLXE} Tsefut lile as per Schedute 11 of the Companies Act, 2013
Qffice equipment 3 years 3 years
Furniture and fxtures 5 years ) yedrs

Plam and mac 5 vears 13 years
Vehicles 3 vears & years
Server A years 6 years
Computers 3 years 3 years

{ii} Leusehokd improvements are amortised over the primary period of the lease or economic useful lite of 10 years, whivhever is tower.

[stangible assets

Intangible assets acqutrad separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.

Foflowing initial recogaition, intangible assels are cammied al cost less any accumulated amontisation and accumulated impairment losses, i any. Interally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised
development costs, are not capitatised and the related expenditure is reflected in Stateiment of Profit and Loss in (he period in which die expenditure is incurmedl.

My free shops and represents Hme value ol security deposit amount paid to Delhi Intemational Airpor Limited i accordance with terms oF CORCESSioN aMmangeinent.

License represcits right to run and operate

Amoritzation of Intangibles — Enangible assets with finite usefist lives thal are avquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impainmen losses, il any. Amotisation is
recogmised on a straight-line basis over their esti . The estimated uscful lite and amontisation method are reviewed af the enc of' each reporting period, willy the <1¥ect of any changes in estimale
being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible asscls sith indetinite usctil lives that ave acquired separately are carried at cost less acoumtated mpainnent losses, iFany.

Iit Hne basis over the estimated wsetul fife of ¥ years.

Computer Software are amortised on sliw




Deltsd Bty Free Services Private Limited {CIN < US2399BL XD TC1919063)
Nates 1o Financial Statements for the year ended Xarch 31, 2022
Aot In Rupees crore, usless othern ise stated}

)y Invenlory
Stock-in-trade - Traded goods are valed al kower of vost and net realisable value,
in bringing poads to Qieir present location and condition, The net realisable value is the estimaled selling price in the ordinary course of
necessary to make the safe,

Cust {Other han Goods-in-lransit) is detennined on a moving weighted average basis and inclades all applicahle vosts incurred
usiness less the estimated costs ol completion and estimated cosls

) Borrowing cost

Borrowing vosts directly attribatabie 10 (e sequisition. constrclion or production of qualifying assets, that necessarily fakes a sabstaatial period of e to get veady for its intended uze or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of (he asset.

Al other bomowing costs are expensed in the period in whick they oceor,

Borowing cosis consist of interest and other costs thal an entity incurs in comection with the borrowing of fisus. Borvaseing cost also includes exchange ditferenees to llie extent regardsl asan adjustment to the

bomowing cost,

nelal assels

)] Empairnzent of son-ii

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is a indication (hal an asset may be impaired. 1€ any indication exists, of when annual impainnent testing for an assct is requited, the company
estimales (he asset’s revoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the ligher of an asset’s or cash gencrating unils’ (CGUs) net seffing price andl ils value in use, The recoverable amotnt is detersdned
Yor an inclividual assel, unless the assel does not generate cash inflows that e lavgely independent of those from other assels or Company of assels. When Ihe carmying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable mnount. e asset is constdered Bapaired and s written down 1o 15 receverable amount,

For assets, an assessment is made at <ach reperting date to delemmine whether there is an indication thal previously recognised impainnent logses ne fonger exist or have decreased. If such indication exi
Company estinrates (he 2ssei’s vr CGL's recoverable amounl. A previeusly recopuised impainment foss is reversed only 1 there has been a change In the assumptions used to detennine the asset’s recoverable
amount sinee the last impairment Toss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that 1he canying amount ol the assel does not exceedl its recoverable amomnt, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have
bren detennined, net of depreviation. kad no impainnent loss been recognised for fhie asset in prior years, Suck reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profil and Loss unless the asset is carried al 2 revatued
amount, in which case, the reversat is reated as a revaluation increase.

) Provisions, Contingens liabilities, Contingent assets, antd Commitments

Prov
seltle the obligation and a reliable cstimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Compuany expects soine o all of 3 provi
reimbursement is recognised as & sepamte sssei. bul only when the reimbursement is virally certain. The expense relating o a prov
reimbursement.

I e effect of the time valie of money Is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-1as rate that reflects, when appropriate, the nisks specific to the
lle provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost,”

ns are recognised when tie Compary Jas a preseit obligation tegal or constructive) as a reselt of a past evenl, it is probable that an outflow of resources embudying economic benetits will be required 10
ision to be reimbursed. for example, under an insurance contract, the
n is presented in the Statemeznl of Profit and Loss o2l ol any

iabilily. When discounting is gsed, the increase in

Contingent lability is disclosed in the case of:

+ A present abligation arising from past events, when iUis not probable that an outlow of resources will not be required to settle the obligation
+ A present cbligation arising from past events, whea no reliable estimate is possible
+ A pussible obligation arising trom past events, woless the probability of outlow of resources is remote

disclused where an inltow of

Conlingent assets usually arise from unplanned or oliier unespected evenls that give rise (o the possibilily of an inflow of econcmie henefis to the entity, A contingent asset i

eeonoimic benefils is probable,

Commitiments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of assels

Provisions, contingen liabilities, contingent assels and commitinenis are reviewed at cach balance sheet date,

h)  Emploxee Benefits

s and honus elc.,are recognised in the

All employee benefits payableiavailable within iwebve moaths of rendering the service are clssified as short-tenm employee benefits, Benelits such as salaries, we
Statement of Profit and Loss in the gerind in which the employee renders the related service,

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund are detined comzibution scheme, The Company bas no obligation, other than the cont

ntion payable,

The Comipany recognizes contribution payable as expeaditure, when an employes renders e relaled serviee. If the coatzibution payable 1o the scheme for service received betore the reporting date exeveds the
contribulion already paid, the delicit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribition alncady paid. IT the contribution atready paid exceeds the contribulion duc for services
received betore the balance sheet dale, then excess is revognized as an asset to the extent (hat the pre-payment will fead to, for example. a reduction in fasure payment or a cash relind.

benefits under e delined benelit plan is determined using the projected watit eredit mettod with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date, which recognised cach
ng rise o additional usit of empluyee benefit emtitlement and measure each unit separately to build wp the fual obligation.

The cosl of providi
pertad ol sevvice as gi

Remeasurements, comprising of acharial gains and losses are recognised inmediately in the balance sheet with a comesponding debil or eredit 1o retained eamings thrangh Other Comprehensive Income in the
pertod inwhich they ocenr, Remeasurements are nol reclassilied 10 profil or loss in subsequent periods. Past service cosis are revagnised in Statement of Profit and Loss on the earlicr of:
i} The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, aned

ii} The dale thal the Company racognises related resine

uring cusls

Net interest is caleulated by applying the discount rale to the net defined benefit liability or assel, The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benetit obligation as an expense in the
statement of profit and los:
i} Service costs comprising cusrent service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses en curtaiiments and nor-routing settlements; and
i} Nel interest expense or income




Delisi Dty Free Services Private Limiled (CEN 2 F99DLKMIPTCI91960)
Notes 1o Financial Statements for the year ended March 3, 2022
(Ameunt in Rupees crore, sitless otheraise stated}

h Long {erm emigloyee benelits

Compensated abseiices which are Bot expectad 10 oecut within twelve imonthis aller the end of e period in whicl the employee neticlers the related seivices are recognised as 2 liability at the present valie of the
estimated fiture cash oulllows expected to be made in respect of services rendered by employees at the balance sheal date. The benefils are discounted nsing markel yields al the end of repurting period on
Government boods That have lerms approximating 1o the 1enms of the related obligation. Remeasaremants as a result of experience adjustmeats and changes in actuarial asswmptions are recognised in prolit o
foss.

il Finanelal instrunents

asset of vne ent

A Gnancial instnument is any conlrac) that gives rise 1o 3 finanei

andd a Tinanicial liakifiyy of equity instrumieat of another entity,

Financial assers.

1nitial receyniilon and measurement

o of the Mnancial
n it the markel phace (regular way trades} are recognised on the inde date,

All fimancial assets are recossised initially at Rair vadie plus, in the case of fimancial assets not recorded al fair value through prefit or loss, trnsaction costs that are antributable to the ace
assel, Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assels within a time frame established by regulaion or conven
(he date that the Company commils le purchase or sell the assel.

Subsequent measurenient

For purposes of subsequent measutement, Ninancial asseis are classitted in lour categaries:
. Debl insiruments af amortised cost
b, Dbl instruments, derivatives amil equily instruments at fair value through prafit ot loss (FVTPL)

Dbt nstruments at amortised cosl:
A *debl instrument” s measwead al the amortised cost it both the following conditions are mel;

a) The asset is held within a business madet whose objective is lo hold assels for colleviing contractai cash flows, and
I:) Contractual tenms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash Mows that are sofely payments of principal anl interest (SFP1) on the prineipai amount outstand

2.

interest mie tEHR) method,

This ralegory is the most relevant o the Company. Alker initial measuranent, such financial assels age subsequently measured al amortised cost using the effecti
Amortised cost is cateulated by aking inle account any discount or preminm on acquisition and fees or costs thal are an integrat part of the BIR, The EIR amortisation is inchwled iz finance income in the protit
or Toss. The losses arising [rom impainnent are recognised in the Statement of Pyodit and Loss. This category generathy applies to trade and other receivables, For mere information on receivables. refer 1o Note
5B,

Debt instniment at FYTPL: EVTPL is a residual category for debt instrumeats. Any debt instrament. which does net meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTQOCE, is classilied as e
F\TPL.

In addition, the Company may eleel (© designate a debl instument. which otherwise meets amontized cost or FVTOCT eriteria, as at FVTPL. Hewever, such election is allowed only if doing so reduices or
climinales a measurement or revognilion inconsistency (refirred to as “accounting mismatel’). The Cempany has not designated any debt instmiment as af FY'TPL, Debt instiuments inchided within the FNTPL
teoomy are measnred at fdr vahe with all chanees recognized in the Siatemenl of Profil and Loss.

DBerecagnition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the balance shieet) when:

a, The rights to reccive cash Mows Trom the asset bave expired. or

. The company has translerved ils rights 10 receive casht flows from (e asset or has assumed an obligation to pay ihe received eash fows in filt withont material delay to a third pary under a “pass-lhrough’
amngement: and vitlier (23 Bz company has transterred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or <b) (e company has neither iransferred nor relained subslantially all the risks and rewards of the

asset, bul has (onsfoemed contne) of the asset.

When the company has transferedd its rights to receive cash [lows from an asset or has entered info a pass-through amangement, it evaluates if and (o what extent it has refained the risks and rewards of
awnership, When it has neither ansterred nor relained subsiantinlly all of the risks and rewards of (he assel, nor iransternad control of the assel, the company continues Lo revogiise e trms Rired assel w he
extent of the company™s continuing nvolvement. In tral case, the company also recognises an associated lia The transfenved asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligattons that Ihe company has relained.

Continuing involvement that lakes Wlie form of a guarantee over the translerred asset is measured at the Jower of the original carrying ameunt of the assel and the maximum amount of consideration that the

coimpany could be required to reps
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{Amount in Bupees erore, unless othervise stated)

[mpairaient of Baascial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 104, the Company applics expected credit toss tECLY mpde! for measurement and revogatition o impainsent loss on the following financial assels and erecdit rigk expusure:
a1 Financial assets 1hat ave debt instnnments, and are measiired &t amertised cost e.g.. loans. debt seeurities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance .

) Taade receivables or any contracmal right to receive cash or another financial asset that result [vom wansactions that are within the scape of Ik AS 11 and Ind AS I8,
) Loan coruntitments which are not measwred as at FVTFL,

The company foltows “simplitied approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade K ables or contracl revenue receivables, The application of simplifiex] approach does not require the
Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairmwnt loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at cach ieporiing date, right from its initial recog ition.

For recogniticn of impaiment loss on other financtal assets and risk
has not increasal significantty, | 2-moalls ECL is used (o provide for i
instnument smproves such Giat there is ro longer a significant incrcase in eredit risk sinee initial recognition, then the entity reverts 1o recognising impairment

osnre, the company determines that whether there has been a sigaiticant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. T credit risk
paiment loss. However, i credit risk hos increased siguilicantly, litetime ECL is used. I£ in a subsequent period, credit quatity ol the
oss allowance based on | 2-munth ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credil losses resufting From all possible defanll events over the expected life of a tinancial instniment. The 12-month ECL is a portion of (he fifetime ECL which results Itom

definlt events thal are possible within |2 months after the reponting date,

ECL is Ihe dilference bebween atl comractual cash Nows hat are due 10 the company i a
the orginal EIR. When sstimating the cash flows, an entity is requirad to censide

ance with the contract and ot the cash flows Gaat the entity expacts 10 receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), disconnied at

a1 Al contraciual Lerms of tie financial instrument (including prepayment, exlension, call and similar options) over the 2xpected life of the financial instrament. However in rare cases when the expected life of
\he finangial instrument canaot be estimaled reliably, then the entity is required (o use (he remaining contractual term of the Ginaneial instrument

1) Cash fows [rom the sale of collaterat held or otser credit enhancements that are inlegial to the contractust tenns

ECL itspairment toss allowance (or reversal} vecognized during the period is recognized as income: expense in the stalement of prufil nd foss (PRL). This amount is reflected under the bead “otier expenses” in
the Statement of Profit & Loss. The bakance sheet presentation for various financial insirments is described helow;

a3 Fimancial assels measured as at atmuiised cosl. coniraciual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.c., as an integral part of e measurement o those assels in the
alance sheet, The allowance reduces the net camying amount. Untit the asset meels write-off criteria, the company does not reduce impakrnet allowance from the gross canying amount.

o) Loan ¢ itments and financial g contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the batance sheet, 1.2 a5 2 liability.

For assessing increase in credil risk and impainnent loss, the company combines fnanciaf instraments on the basis of shaved cradit risk characteristics will (he objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed
1o enable significant ncreases in cradit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Financial Habilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabifities are classificdl. at mitial recogaition, as finaneial Habilities al fair valie through profit or loss, loans and borrowings. payables. or as derivatives.

Al financial liabilities are recogaised initially at Fair value and, i (he case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of direvtly attributable transaction cests.

The Campany’s financiat liabititics inchude irde and other payables, Ieans and borrowings including bank overdrafls, financial guamntee vontracts and dervative financial instmmenis,

Subseguent measurement

-ation, as described below:

The measurement of financial fabilities depends on their classifl

Financtal liabilities at fair value (rongh profit or loss

Financial Rabilities at fair valuc throngh profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilites designated apon nitial recognition as at fair value through profit or, loss.

Financial liab are classified as lield for trading if they are fncurred for (he purpose of repurehasing in the near term. This category also icludes derivative fnancial instruments entered into by the Company
that are not designated as hedzing in: in hedge i ips as defined by Ind AS 109, Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trmding unless they are designated as ellective
hedging instaments, Gains ot fosses on liabilities hield for tading are 1ecoguised in the profit or loss.

Finaneial labilities designated upon initial recognition at Iair value through protit or loss are designated as such al the inttial date of recognition. and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satistied. For Rabilitizs
destgnated as FVTPL, fair value gainst tosses altributable to changes in own eredit risk are revognized in QCI These gains’ loss are not subsequently fransfemed to Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the
Company way transker the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Al olhier changes in Tair value of such Hability are recognised i the Stazement ol Profit ancl Loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the calegory most relevant fo the company. Afler initial recognition, interest-bearing toans and bomowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and lasses are
vecoauised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the Habi¥ities are derecognised as well as throught the EIR amonisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by laking into account any discount or premium on acquisition angd fees or costs that are an imegral part of the EIR. The FIR amonisation is included as Tnance costs in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies lo bowmowings. For more infunnation refer Note 1L,
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BDerecapniticn

A finaneia! liability is derecognised when the obligation wider the liabitity is discharged or cancefivd or expi
<dberent teris. of the lerms of an existing fiability are sibstantiatly moditied, such an exchange or mod
differenve in e respective canying amounts is recognised ig tlie slatenen of profit and loss,

L When an existing Gnancial liabifity is reptaced by another from the st fender on substantially
s treated as e derecognition of the originmal liability and the recognition of a new Hability, The

Reclassification of finuncial assets

The company detennines clas: tion of financial assels and lia
Niabilitics, For financial assets which are debt instruments, a revlassilivation is macke only if e
infrequent. The company’s senior mamagement determines change in the business medel as 3 result of extemal or intenmial changes which are s
exterml partics. A change in the business model oecurs when the company either begins or ceases Lo perform an activity Wat is significant to ils operal
the reclassification prospectively trom Gre reclassitieation date which is the tisst day of 3¢ immediately nex) feporting perod follwing the change in business model. The Company does not restate any
chuding impairmenl gains o ksses) or inlerest.

. Adler nitial 1ecognition. no reclassiftcation s made for finanvial assets which are equity instniments and inancial
is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expecied io be
rificant to the company's operations. Such changes are evident to
s, H'tise company rectassifies financial asseis, it applies

previou cognisad gains, losses {

AU

Ofsetting of stz usnenls
Financlal assets and tinancial Habilities are offset and the net amount Is reported in the consalidated batance sheet if there is a cunently eniviceable legal right 1o offset the recognised atnounts and diere is an

n L selthe ona net basis, b realise ie assets and settte the Hiabifities simullaneously.

intenti

k) Derbvptive linstruments

nanei

Sich derivacive financial instnnnents are initiaily e

The Company uses derivative Maancial instnunents, such as forward cunrzocy coniracts and cross carrency swaps Lo hedge its forcign curreney Hsl
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered inlo ail are subsequently re-measured ot fair value, Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as fnanciat
anges in e fair value of derivalives are faken directly fo Statentent of Profit and Loss, except for the eFfeclive portion of cash fluw
lite hedge itemns effect profit ot loss.

lies when the [ir value is negative. Any gains ot losses arising trom
! toss w

Ha
hedges, which is recognived in OCEand e revlassified to profit a

H Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cas) equivalent in the balance sheel comprise casly at baniks and on land anc short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. which are subject to an insignilficant isk of changes in

vale,

my  Cash Now statement
Casli flows are reported using indireet melhod, whereby Profil:{loss) before lax reported under Statement of Profit and loss is adjusted for the eftects of transactions of non-casl rature a

accruals of past ot liture cash recelis or payments, The cash Hows [rown operating, investing and fnancing activities of the Company are segregated based on avaitable information.

ny determals or

n)  Forefga currency
The Financiai Statements are preseated in INR, and the functional citrency of the Company is INR {Functional currency of the Company was USD till March 3, 2018),

ially recorded by the Company at their respective Tunctional curency spot mtes atb the date the tansaction (irst
| ke af the date of the imnsagtion,

Transaclions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (loreign curmencies) are ini
qualifics for recagnition. However, for practical reasous, the cowpany 1ses an average rxe if the average approximaics the ac

s are translated af the functional curency spot rates of exchange at llie reporting daie,

Monelary assets ad liabitities denominated in foreign currer

ised in profit or loss with the exception of The following:

Exchange differences arising en settlement or translation of monetasy items are recog

Non-moaclary items hat are measured i terms of istorical cost in a forelgn cunrency are ranslated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial Iqpsactions, Non-monetary items measured at Rair vatue in
a forcign curmeey are lanshated using the exchange rates at the date when the fir vatue is determined, The gain or loss arising on trasslation of nam-Imonetary flems measared at fair valie is treated ia line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (Le.. wranslation differences on items whose lair vahw gain or loss is recognised in OCI or Statemenl of Profit and Loss are also
recognised i OC| or Statement of Profit and Loss, respeciively),

o} v vahie measuarenient
The Company measures financial instments, such as, derivatives a1 fair value at each balance sheet date,

ion between markel participants at the measwvement date, The fair valie measurement is bassd on

Fair value is the price thal would be received 1o sell an assel of paid to transler a liability in an orderly trans,
ihe presumption thal thie tansaction 10 sell the asset or transfer the lability takes place eithers

5 In the principal market for the assel or liability, or

by In the absence of  principal market, in the most advantageous market lor the assel or liability

The principal or the must advantageons market must be aceessible by te Company.
The tair value of an asset or a tability is measired using the assumplions that market participants would use when pricing the assel or liability. assuming that market participanis act in their economic best

interest,

nt's ability (o generale <conomic benefits by using the assel in its highest amd best use or by sefling it to another market

A fair value measuremenl of a non-tinaseial asser takes into account a market partici
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

lie use of relevant observable imputs and

The Company uses valuation techiniques that are appropriate in the cicoamstances and for which sulficient data are available to measure fair value, maximisi
minimising the use of uzobsenvable inputs.

ies for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fir valse hicrarehy, deseribed as follows, basel o the Towest level input that is

All assets and
ificant 1o the Tair vahee measurement as a whole:

Level | — Quoted tunadjusted) market prices in activie markets for ideatical assets or Habitities

Level T — Valuation techiniques for which the towest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirecily observable
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the towest level input that is sigaificant 1o the Iair value measuremenl is unobsenvable

weial Stalements on o recurring hasis. the Company determines whether Irnslers have occuned behween levels in the lierarchy by ne-assessing
nt to the Tair value mensurement as a whole) al the end of cach reporting period.

For assets and {abilities that are revognised in the F
calegarisation (based on the lowest fevel input ihal is signiti
“the Company determings the policies and proceduncs for both recirring Fair value measnrement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted hnancial assels measured at tair value. and for non-recurring
measurement, stich as assels held tor distribution in disconlinued operations,

ancial assets, and significant liabilitics, such as contimgent consideration. Selection criteria include market

External valuers are involved B valuation o signittcant assets, such as propartics amd unguoled
knowledge, reputativn, independence and whether prolessional standards sre mainained. Valuers are nenually rotated every three years.

GRCHA
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At cach reporting date, the Company analyses the movements i the values ol assets aml tiabilities which are required 1o be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company™s avcounling podicies. Far (his analysis,
the Company verifies the majer inputs applied in the Jatest valuation b ¢ (e intornation 1 he valwation compuiation to comnacts and other relevant documents,

agre

The Company. in conjinction with the Company’s external valuess. alse compares the change in e fir vahie of 2ach dsset and liability with relevant external sources to detennine whether the <hange is
reasonatle,

For the purpose of Biy vadue disclosures, the Company has detenninad classes of asvets and linbHities on the of the pature, characleristics and misks of the asset o Hability ad the fevel ol the falr value

hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting pulicy Tor fiv value, Other fair value related disclosnres are given is the relevam hotes,
) Disclosures for vatuation methuds, signilicant estimates and assemptions (note 25)
b} Quantitaive disclosures of fair vatue measurement hicmvelhy inote 393

¢t Financial instruments {inchxling those carricd at amottised cost) (nole 28}

Revenue recognilion
Revenue is measuted at the [air valie of e consideration recetved ot receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer retims, rebates and ather similar allowanees.
Revenue is measared ot the Biir value of the considertion received or receivable, taking into account continctally defined terms of payment and excluding 1axes or duties collected on beball of the govemment.

Revenue is recopnised when the amwunt of revenue can be reliably measured. it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and specific eriteria have been met for cach of the Company's
activities as described below,

Sate of poads

ods ar the dity froe outlets operated by Hhie Company is recognised al the time of delivery of goods |o customters which coincides with transfer of control risks and reward ar which

ions are satistied:

Revenue fram the sale of
time all the fllowing con

~The Compamy hias transferred (0 e s er (e sipnificant risks and rewards of owiership of gowds:

-The Company relains aeither continuing managerial i elvement fo the degree usually asseciated with ownership nor elfeetive contrel oser the poeds sofd:
-The amount of reveiue can be mensured relfably :

-1 is probable that the veonomic benefits associated with the transaction will low to 1he Company: amd

~The costs incutred or to be incurred i rzspect of the transaction van be measured reliably,

Sales are staled net ol returns and discounls.
Interest incane
Fur all delst Instruments measared gitlier at amortized cosl or at [air valie through other comprehensive income, inlerest income is recordedl using the effeetive interest rate i EIR)

Visibility charges
Visibility charges has been revognised as per the lentis of the conteact witl the customer.

“Fuxes onincome

Curreat inconie tax
Current income tax is mcasured al lhie armount expectad 1o be paid (o the tax authorities in accondance with lhe Incorme Tax Acl, 1496]

Current income lax zssets and labilities are measwred al the amount expected o be recovered from or pakd 1o the Iasation asthorities. The 1ax rates and fax laws used (o compule the amownl are these thal are
eaacted or substantively enactecl, at the reperting date

Current income tax relating to iletns recogaised outside prolit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss teither in other comprehensive income or i equity). Current (ax items are recognised in comrelation to the
underlying transaction cither @ GCl ot directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions takess in the tax relurs with respect to sitwations in which applicable tax regulations are subject
terpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Peferred ax
Delerrad 1ax is provided using the liability methed on temperavy diferences between the tax bases of assets and liabifitics and their canying amouns for financial reporting purposes at the reperling date.
Delerred tax Fabilities are recognised tor all taxable teimporary dillerences.

Delerred tax assets are recognised for all deductible tempormy dlifferzne
that taxable profit will be availably against which the deductibie tempaorary

the camry torward of unused fax eredils and any unused tax tosses. Defened 1ax assers are recognisad to the extent that it is probable
differences, and the camry forward of unused tax credits and unused tox Josses van e wiilised.

The carrying amount of deferred fax assets is reviewad al each reporting date and reduced to the exient that it is no longer probable (hat sufficient raxable profit will be available to atlow all or part of the
deferred fax asset 10 be wtilised, Unrecognised deferred tax assels are re-assessed al each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it lias become prebable tiat future 1axable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset 10 be recoverad,

Deferrel tax assels and Habilities are measared al the 1ax mtes that are expected 1o apply in the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settlesl. based vn tax rates (and X Jaws) that bave been enacted
or subsiatively enacted at the reponing date,

Deferred tax refating 10 iteins recognised omside profit or loss is recognised vatside profit or 1oss (<ilher i ather comprehensive income or in cquity). Deferred tax items are recoghised in comelation to the
underlying transaction ¢ither in OCI or directly in equity.

Delerred fax assets and defened tax liabilit
same taxatien autherity.

are offset i a legally enforceable rght exists to set off current 1ax assets against curvent fax liabilities and the deferred taxes relale te the same taxable entity and the
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Notes to Flnancial Statements Tor the year encded Maach 33, 2022
{Amoun

Rupees erore, unless othersise siiled)

Seument Information
The Company has only one reportable business segment, which is operation of duty ez outers a1 Dellit ntematkonal Aiport and operates i a single business segment. Accordingly, the amounts appearing in
the Financiai Statemenis relate to the Company's single business segment.

Lenses
Effective April 1, 2019, 1he Company has adoptad Ind AS 116 Leases” appliad 10 atf tease conracss existing on Apeil L 201Y using the moditied rerospective method along with iransit
Right vf use assets {Rel) at an amount cquak o 1he lease Bability, Accordingly comparatives for previous year ended March 3, 20019 have not been retrospectively adjusted.
A contract s, or conlains, a tease i e contraet convess e cight o contral the use of an identified asset fura period of tine in exchange lor consideration,

oplion to recopnise

Where the Campany Js the lessee

The Company recognizes vight-oluse assel representing s right 1o use the underlying asset tor the lease lerm at the lease commencement dale, The cost of the right-of-use asset measured a1 inception shali
cotnptise of the mmount of e nitial measurement of il lease liabilily adjusted for any lease paymemts made al or fefore the commencenzni dale less any tease incentives received. plus any initial direct costs
incurmecl. The right-ol-use assets is subsequently measired at cost less any acenmulated depreciation, accamudated Impainsent Josses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of 1he kease liability, The rght-
ol-use asset is depreciated from the commencement date on a stinighit-ling basis over the shoner of (he lease tenn and uselul 1ile of the underlving asset, Right-of-use assets are tested lor impainment whenever
there is any indication that their carmving amounts may not be recoverable. Impaiment foss, if any, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

The Company measures e lease liability al e present value of the lease payments that are not paid al the commencement date of the lease. The lease paymems are discomtled using the interest rate implicit in
Ihe lease, it thal rate can be readily determined. I7 that rate cannot be readily detennined, the Company uses mevemental bomowing mte. For leases will reasonably simifar charagleristics, the Company may
adopt the tncremental bomowing rate for the entire port folio ol leizes as a whole, The lease payments shall inchude Tised pavments, vardable lease paymients, resilual value giarantess, exercise price ol a purchase
option where the Company is reasonably certain v exercise that eption and payments of penaities Tor tersminaling the lease, iCthe lease term reflects the lesses exereising an option 1o teominate e lease. The
iease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the camying smount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the sarying amount o reflect the ease payments made and remeastring the canrying
mnonnl le rellect any reassessment or fease medifications or to reileal revised In-subsiancee fxed lease payments,

The Company recognises the amount of the re- mwasurement of lease liability as an adjusiment 1o the right-of-use asset. Where the camying amount of the Aght-olfuse asset is reduced (o zero and there s 3
farther reduction in (e measurement of the tease Habtlity, the Company recognizes any remaining amount of the re-measurcinent in Statement of Profit and Loss,

Where the Campaay is the Lessor

Leases are classilied s finance Teases when substantialhy all of (he risks and rewards of ownership (ranster from the Company to the lessee, Amounts due from lessees under tinance teases are recorded as
receivables at thie Company nel investment in the leases. Finance lease income is atfocated to accounting periogds so as lo rettect a constant penodic rate of refum on the nel investment ontsianding in respect of
1he lease,

Leases where the Company docs not tmansler subsiantially all the visks and rewards incidental te ownership of the assel are classified as operating leases, Lease renfals under operating leases are recognized as
t-line Basis over die lease tenn. Contingent renis are recognized as revenue 0 the period in which they are eamed.

incoms on a sini

Operating eycle and curvent versus gan-curreat classification
The Company presents asscls and liabilities iz the balance sheet based on current: non-current chassification. An asset is treated as currenl when il is:

2) Expected (o be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cyele

by Held primarily for he purpose of trading

©) Expected to be realised within twelve months afier the reperting period, or

d} Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged orused to settie a lability for at least twehve inonths atter the reporti

Al other assels are classified as non-cunent.

period

Aliabifity is cwrent when:

a} It is expected lo be seftled in nonmal operating cycle

by It i5 held primarily tor the pupose of trading

et It is due to be seltled within twelve months after the reponting period, or

) There is no uacanditional right to defer the settlement of the Hability tor at least hwelve months after the reporting period
Al other liabifiles as nen-current,

itics,

Deferred 1ax assets and liabitities are classified as non-current assels and |

The opemiing ¢ycle is the time behveen the acquisition of assets for processing and (heir reatisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle,

Exceptionat items
An item ol income or expense which are materiat by virtue of Higir size, nature or incidence are disclosed separately as exceptionat ilems to enstire that fnanclal statements attow an uirderstamding of the underlying

performance of the business during the year and to facilifate comparisor with prier year.

Recent accaunting pranouncemenis

Mindstry of Corporate Affairs 1“MCA™) notifies new slandard or amendments to the exisling standards under Companies {(hndian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022,

MCA amended the Companies (Indinn Accounting Standards) Amendmen Rulbes, 2022, applicable from Apal 1, 2022, as belew:

Tiel AS 103 - Reference lo Conceptual Framework

The amendments specifiy thal 10 qualify Tor recogarition as pan of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired and hiabilities assumed meist meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the
Conceptual Framework Tor Financial Reporting under Infian Accounting Standards (Conceplual Framework) issued by the |
feantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103, The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impacl in ils financial sialements,

ate of Chartered Accouwntants of Tndia at the acquisition date. These changes do

not si

Ind AS 16 - Proceads before intended tse
The amendments maitly prohibit an entity (rom dedieting from the cost of property. pland and equipiment amounis received fram selling items produced while the company is preparing he asset for its nendad
use, Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and relatecd cost in prolit or loss. The Company docs nob expect the amendiments (e have any impact in ils recognition of its property, plant and equipment

in its financtal statements.”

I AS 27 — Onerous Contracts - Costs ol Fuliifing a Conlract
The amendhnents specify tat thal the "cost of fullilling” a conlract comprises the “costs that relate directly 1o the contmel™, Costs that refate directly 10 a comiract can gither be incremental cosis of l(iHing that
contracts. The amendient is essentially a clarification and the Company dees not expecl the

conlract fexawples wonld be direct labour, materials) or an aliecation of ether costs that refate dicectly to tulfilli
amendinent to lave any siguilicant bapact in its financiaf slalements,

Ind AS 109 = Annval Improvements fo Ind AS (202F)
The amendiment clarifics which fees an ennity ineludes when it applies die ~HI percent” 1est of Ind AS HI n assessing wheller to derecognise a finaneial liability, The Company does #ot expect the anrendment

o have any significaut impact in its Bnancial statements.




Delhi Duty Free Serviees Private Limited (CIN 1 US2599DL2009PTCLY1963)
Notes to Finanelnd Statements for the yenr ended Aarch 31, 2022
(Amount in Rupees crove, unless otherwise stated)

3. Property, plant and equipment and eapital work-in-progress
‘The changes in thie carrving value of propecty, plant and cquipment for the year ended Marceh 31, 2022 are as follows:

Leaschold

Particulars improyements Plant & cquipment  Furniture & fixtures Computers Office equipment Yelticles Total
Gross carrying value as at April |, 2021 42,25 1657 20.38 4.78 0.50 034 79.78
Additions - 0.27 022 0.08 .00 - 0.57
Disposal - - (0.3} - {0,06) - (0.69}
Gross carrying valae as at March 31, 2022 42,25 11.84 20,57 4,86 044 () 80,26
Accumulated depreciation as at April |, 20210 18,83 803 9.72 4.18 0,46 0,22 1,44
Charge for he vear 6,24 1.50 4.06 0.38 0.02 0.06 12.32
Accumulated deprecintion en disposal - - (1.03) - {0.06) - {1.09)
Accumulated deprecintion as at Mureh 31, 2022 25,07 %39 13,75 4.56 0.42 0.28 53.67
Carrying value as at March 31, 2022 17.18 228 6.82 0.]4 0.02 0.02 26.59

Tlse changes in the earryving value of praperty, plant and equipment for the vear ended March 3£, 2021 are as Tollows:

Leaselold

Particubars . Plant & equipment  Furniture & fixtures Computers Office equipment Vehieles Tetal
'ln'll)l'ﬂ\'l‘['lll.‘llfi
Gross enrrying value as at April 1, 2020 42.20 11.57 2900 4.53 0,48 0,30 79.08
Additions 0.05 - 6.39 0.25 0.02 - 0.74
Disposal - - (LG - - - {0.01)
Gross earrying value as af March 31,2021 42,25 11,57 0,38 4.78 1.50 1.30 79.78
Accumulnted depreciation as at April 1, 2020 12,61 6.45 3.70 in 841 416 3611
Chacge lor the vear 6,22 1.38 397 0.46 0.05 0.06 1234
Accusstulated depreciation on disposal - 0,01} - - - (0.01)
Accumulated deprecintion as at Mareh 31, 2021 18.83 3,03 9.72 4.18 46 22 4144
Carrying value as at March 314, 2021 2342 334 10,606 0.60 .04 0.08 38.34
For details af Property, plant and equipment pledged as security for borrowing - Refer Note 11
As af Mareh 31, As at Maveh 3,
2022 2121
iCapiml work in progress 0.58 0.73

Capital work in progress (CWIP) Ageing Schedule ns at March 31, 2022
Amount i CWIP for a peviod of

Paticulars Mote than 3

Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total

YeRrs
Prajects in propress 0,25 - 0.29 0.03 0,58
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 0.25 - .29 0,03 .58

Capitnl work in progress (CWIP) Ageing Scheciule as at Maveh 3E, 2021
Amcunt in CWIP lor a perind of

Paticufar i 3

cuars Less than T year -2 years 2-3 years Mo;‘;i‘::“ Total
Projects in progress 0.06 0.53 0.10 0.04 0.73
Projects temporarily suspended - - . . -
Total 0.06 0.53 .10 0.04 473

Project sxecution plans are modulated basis capacity requirement assessimeny on an annual basis and all the projects are executed as per rolling annual plan, The Projects i progress are expected to be
completed by March 31, 2023,

£i) Capital work in progress as ul March 31, 2022 comprises Server and expenditure for the lease hald improvements in the course of eonstruction and includes borrowing costs capitalized Rs Nil {Previeus
year Rs. Nil

({\O,q,.\ S g
SCouNTR
LN



Delhi Buty Free Services Private Limited (CIN @ US2599DL.200YPTC121963)
MNaotes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
{Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

4, Intangible assets

The changes in the earrying value of intangibles for the yvear ended March 31, 2022 are as follows:

. Computer Software Licenses™ Tatal
Particulars .
{Acqutired)

Gross carrying value as at April 1, 2021 4.90 260.85 265,75
Additions 0.64 - 0.64
Disposal - - -
Gross carrying value as at March 31, 2022 5.54 260.85 266,39
Accumulated Amortization as at April 1, 2021 4.54 196.44 200.98
Charge for the year 0.41 17.34 17,75
Accumulated amortization on disposal - - -
Accumulated amortization as at March 31, 2022 4,95 213.78 218,73
Carrying value as at March 31, 2022 0.59 47.07 47.66

The changes in the carvying value of intangibles for the year ended March 3 1, 2021 are as follows:

Particulars Computer Software Licenses®* Total
(Acquired)

Gross carrying value as at April 1, 2020 4.72 200.85 205,57
Additions 0.18 - 0.18
Disposal - - -
Gross carrying value as at March 31, 2020 499 260.85 265.73
Accumulated amortization as at April i, 2020 4.00 i79.10 183.16
Charge for the year (.48 17.34 17.82
Accumulated amortization on disposal - - -
Aceumulated amortization as at March 31, 2021 4.54 196.44 200.98
Carrying value as at March 31, 2621 0.36 64.41 64.77

] jcenses represents right to run and operate duty free shops (also refer Note 1), The remaining amortization period is 3 years 4 months (as at March 31, 2021 -4
years 4 months)




Dellii Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : US2599DL2069PTCI91963)
Naotes to Financinl Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

SA. Lonns

Non ¢urrent Current
As at As at As at As at
March 3. 2022 March 31, 2021 Morel 31, 2022 Maveh 31, 2021
Unsecured, considered good
Loan to related party (Reler Notes (i) below) 67.00 - - -
Total 67.0% - - -

Note (i) Particulars of ungeeured loan given to relnted purty is disclosed below as per Section 186(4) of Companies Act, 2013

Namie of the loanee Rate of [nterest Purpose As al As at
Muareh 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2028
. . eneral business
GMR Airport Developers Limited 8% P.A GLI\(:ld HSIness 67.00 -
FeRUIeIMeEnts

As per Agreement, GMR Airport Developers Limited shall repay the loan within 2 years from the date of agreement (i.e. January 22, 2022} or at demand
p g p | pay ¥ 4 Y

Maximum amount cutstanding during the year is Rs 67.00 crores ( Previous year Rs. Nil)

SR, Other Financial Asscts

Nom current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 3t 2022 Marel 31, 2821
Carvied at amuortised cost
Unsecured, ¢considered good
Security deposits
- To related parties 173.72 159.23 4,10 0.36
- To other parties 8.05 7.31 0.46 0.43
Balances with banks (o the extent held as margin money agains! bank garantees 0.03 0.62 - -
Interest acerued but not due 0.00 0.11 1.24 0.04
Credit card collections in hand - - 3.32 118
Aimounts recoverable fom related partics - - 0.26 1.02
Amount recoverable fowards rebate, promotion, ele. - - 40.17 2347
Considered doubtful
Amount recoverable towards rebate, promotion, ele, - - 0.67 1.22
Less: Aliowance for bad and doubtiul receivables (Refer Notes (i) befow) - - {0.67) (1.22)
Total 181.80 167.27 49.55 28.67
Note (i}
Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtfuf receivables (expected eredit loss nllowance)
Particulars Amount
Balance as at April [, 2021 (1.22)
Add : Created during she year (0.99)
Less : Actual write oft { Utilisation of provision) 1.54
Bakance as af March 3, 2022 (0.67)
Particuliars Amount
Baijance as at April 1, 2020 (L.19)
Add : Created during the year (0.03)
Less : Actual write off { Utilisation of provision) -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 ([.22)
6, Other nssets
Non current Current
As at As at As at As at
Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
Capital advanees - 0.01 -
- 0.01 - -
Others
Advance 1o suppliers - - 10.63 1.02
Prepaid expenses 0.00 0.02 2.58 30
Balance with government authorities -
Considered good - 0.68 64.31 0,99
Considered doubtful - 0,68 - .
[.ess: Provison for doubt ful halances - (0.68) - -
0.00 0.70 77.52 512
Total (A+B) 0.00 0.71 5,12




Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN 1+ US2599DE2009PTC191903)
Notes to Finaneind Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

{Amount in Rupees crore, unless othenwise stated)

7. lnventories

As at

Mareh 31, 2022

As at
Mareh 31, 2021

(Valued at cost or NRY, whichever is lower}

Stock in trade - traded goeds {including goods in iransit Rs. 14,90 crores and as at March 31,

2021 Rs. 3.78 crores)

Nates:

Tata

93,44

102,8%

93.44

102.81

7.1: The cost of invenlories recognised as an expense during the year - Rs, 238,22 crore (vear ended March 31, 20212 Rs. $09.83 crore)

7.2: The cost of luventorics recagnized as an expensertincome} includes Rs.(0.83) crore (March 31, 2021: Rs.3.33 crore) towards provision/{reversal ol provision) for slow/

non-moving ilems during vear.

7.3: The zbove inventories have been pledged as security for borrowings (Refer Note 11}

8. Cash and cash eqyuivalents

As at

Marel 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Balances witly Banks
-in qurrent accounts
-in EEFC accounts
- Depuosits wills original maturity of less (han three monihs

Cash on hand

BA, Bank batanee other than eash and cash eguivalents

Tatal

3.99 110
9.59 .95
50.00 -
+4.07 1.30
; 67.65 12,53

Asat

Mareh 31, 2022

As at
Mareh 31, 2021

Earmarked balances with banks primarly relate to margin money against bank puarantees and

buyer's cradil

Dividend account

Teta

0.14 0.43
14.29 .
I 14.43 LK)

8B, Reconcilation of Liabilities arising from financing activities during the vear ended March 31, 2022,

Farticulars

As at April 1, 2021

Cash Mlow during the year

Nown Cash

As at Mareh 31,

Proceeds Payment Net Casly Flow Cianges 2022

Long Teriz Borrowings - Term Loans (including current 19.87 - (10.86) {10.86) - 9.01
aturities of long-term borrewings}
Short-tenn borowings 11.27 - (11.27) {11.27) - -
‘Tatal RINE] - {22,13) {22.13) - %401
Recenellation of biabilities arising from finaneing activities during the year ended dareh 31, 2021

. " » . Cash flow during the year Non Casly As at March 31,
Particatars Asatapril 4, 2020 Proceeds Payment Net Cash Flaw Clianges 2021
Leng Tenn Borrowings - Tenn Loans (including current 41.26 1.77 {23.15; (21.38) {0.01}) 19.87
ntattrities of fone-term borrow inus)
Shorl-term borrowings 24.66 - {13.39} (13.39) - 1
Total 65.92 1.77 (36.54) (34,77} 0.00 31
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Eimited {CIN ¢ LSZS399DLI0BOPTCI9I963)
Nutes to Financial Statenents for the year ended March 31, 2022
{Amomnt in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

1), Other equity

As at As at
March 31, 2022 Narch 31,2021
Gienzral Reserve 9.98 9.93
Foreign currency translation reserve (4.58) (4.58)
Hedye resenve - -
Retained camings 384.69 244,27
Total 394,09 249.67
Partiealars As at As al
March 31, 2022 Maveh 31, 2021
[0.1 Generil reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 9.93 9.98
Chaages during the year - -
Balanee af the end of the year 9,98 .98
14,2 Fareign currency translation reserve
Balance ai the beginning of the year (4.58) (d4.58)
Changes duering (he year - -
Balance at the end of the year (4.58) {4.58)
10.3 Hedge reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year - 9.3
Changes during the year - 237
Transfer to profit & loss - {ar7n
Balance at 1he end of the year - -
16.4 Retgined earnings
Balance at the beginning ol the year 244,27 274,13
Add: Net profit for the year 188,34 (30.14)
Less : Interim dividend Rs. 6.00 per share (Previous year Rs. Nil) [Refer note (i) below] (48.00} -
384.61 243,99
Other items of comprehensive income (OC1)
Gther comprehensive income prising from re-measurement of defined benetit obligations net of 0.08 0.28
income tax ) -
Total retained earnings 384,69 244,27
Total (10.1 + 10.2 +10.3+10.4) 390,09 249.67
Notes :
(i) For the year ended March 31. 2022, the Board has approved interim dividend of Rs 6 per equily share in month of Mareh 2022 aguregating to Rs 48,00 crores {Previous year Rs. Nil). As a
Mareh 31. 2022 unpaid dividend of Rs 14.29 crores (net of lax deductied) transferred to separate bank account (refer note 8A). which was subsequently paid to shureholder.
(ii) General reserve is ereated from time to time by way of transfer of profits fiom the retained earings, General reserve is crented by transfer of one component of equity to another and is
not an item of other comprehensive income,

(iiiy Retained Eamings: Retained Earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transter to General reserve. dividends or other distributions paid to sharehoiders.




Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (C1N 1 US2599DL20MSPTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
{Antount in Rupres crove, unless otherwise stitted)

L1 Financlad lkabilities - Borvowings

Non - Curreaf Current
As at Asat As at As at
March 31, 2022 Mareh 3, 2021 March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Seeured
From banks:
Tern loans (Refer Notes (i) & (i) below) 9.01 19,87 8.39 14.86
Less: Current malurities of long term borrowings shown as current 8,59 10.86 - -
.42 2.01 §.50 11.86
Short term borrowings :
Loan repayable on demand (Refer Notes (i) & (iii) below) - - - 11,27
- - - 11.27
Total 0.42 LA 8.50 22,13

{i) The borrowings are secured hy:
- First charge by way of hypothecation of the Campany’'s stock in trade and other movables including book-debis. bills whether documentary or clean. oulstanding monies, receivables,

both present and future,
- First charge on movable fixed assets of the Company. both present asd futare.
- Escrow agreement with the bank and the Company for first and exclusive charge on receivabie.

(hi) Terms of repayment of secured loans

Term Lean:

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Quarter ending No. of Quarters o . Total amount of No. of . Total antount of

Quarterly installments Installments Quarters Quarterly nstalhinents Installments
June 2023 H 0.42 0.42 1 041 0.4t
March 2023 1 0.43 0,43 ! 0,43 0.43
December 2022 1 20 27 1 271 27
September 2022 1 17 271 1 271 271
June 2022 | 2.4 2.74 I 274 2,74
March 2022 t 2.74 2.74
December 2021 1 27t 271
September 2021 | 271 271
June 2021 | 271 2.71
Totak 9.01 19.87

The present interest rale for Tenn Loanis in the range of 7.25% 10 7.75% p.a.

(iii) The present rate of interast on cash credit (INR} is 6.95% (0 7.30% p.a. Also refer note 31,




Dethi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : US2399DLINGYPTCI91963)

Notes to Financial Statemeats for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount In Rupees crare, wnless otlierwise stated)

12, Financial linhilities - Trade payables

As at
March A1, 2622

As at
March 31, 2021

Total outstanding due fo micro and small enterprises {Refer Note 32)

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smnfl enterprises *

neludes amount due to related parties Rs, 38.66 crore (Previous year Rs, 20,07 crors)
Credit period varies as per the contractual terms of various suppliers: vendors. The Compuny ltas appropriste policy in plice 1o ensure that all dues are paicd within the credit terms agreed

with the parties.

Ageing for teade pavables entstanding as at March 31, 2022 is as lollows;

Total

2.50 0.99
119.10 60.62
£21.60 ol.el

Outstanding fur follewing periods from due date of payment

Not due Less tham | year 1-2 vears I-3years More than 3 years Tatal
Total outslanfling dues of micro enterprises and 137 L1 . i 2.50
small enlerprises
Total ousstanding dues of creditors other than .
olal outstanding dues of ereditozs other { 66.40 12.47 o .05 80,36
micro enterprises and sinalf enterprises
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises
Disputed dues of ereditors other than micro ) A
enterprises and small enterprises
67.77 13.60 1.44 0.05 82.80
Accrued expenses 18.73
Fotal 121,59
Agcing for trade piayables outstinding as at March 31, 2021 is as follows:
Outstanding for following periods from due date of piyment
Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2.3 yenrs More than 3 years Total
Total outslanfhng dues of micro enterprises and 092 0.07 ) a 0.99
small enterprises
T standing dues of creditors other than -
h?lal ouistat (. ng dues of credito '0( her tha 20.98 10,21 0.05 0.25 16.87
migro enlerprises and smail enterprises
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small ) 3 )
enteprises
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro ) } )
enterprises and samll enterprises
2190 10.28 .05 0.25% 37.86
Acerued expenses 23.75
Total 61.61
13, Otlheer finaeeinl linbilities
Current
As at Asat

Marvch 31, 2022

Mareh 31, 2021

Other financial liabilities at amortised cost
Unpaid Dividend [Refer note $0¢i}}

Futerest acerued but not due on bomowings
Payables towards property, plant and eguipment?#

Total

* Includes amount due (o related parties Rs. Nil {Previous year Rs. Nil)

# Includes tolal outstanding micro and small enterprises Rs, 0.43 crore (Previous year Rs. 0.3 erore)

14.29 -
0.00 0.04
2.3 4.19

16,65 4,19

16,65 4.19




Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : US2399DL2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements tor the year ended March 31, 2022
{(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

14, Other liabilities

Current

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Advances from customers {Refer note 42) 1.14 0.64
Statutory dues 8.37 5.39
Total 9.51 6.03
15, Provisions
Non Current Current
As af As at As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Provision for emplovee benelits

Provision for compensated absences 1.57 1.47 0.26 0.21
Provision {or gratuity {Reler note 26) : 4.59 4.37 G.73 .58
Total 6.16 5.84 0.99 0.79

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Delhi Buty Free Services Private Limited (CTN @ US2599DL209PTC E91963)
Notes to Finaneinl Steements For the year emded Maveh 3. 2022
{Anaunt in Rupees crove, unless of lerwise stafed)

16. Income tax

The major conponents of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2022 is:
Siatentent ol Proti: and |

For the year ended

For (e year ended

Maich 31, 2022 NMarch 31, 2021

Careent lacome 1

Current income tax charge 5693 -
Deferred ta
Relating to origination and reversal ol temporary differences 149 {544
Enconie tax expenses reporied la the Statenent of Profit and Loss 58,42 (9,44}
ocl
Deterred tax related to items recognised in OCT during in the year;
Net foss {gain} on remeasurements of delined benefit plans 10.03) (0.10)
Tax charged 10 OCI [4.43) {0,10)

Reconciliation of tax expense aod (he accounting profit mudtiptivd by India's domestic tax rate for Marel 31, 2022:

For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2022

For the year endeid
March 31, 1421

Accounting profit hefore tax 6.7 {3953
At applicable income lax tule of 25.168% (previous year 25,168%) 6210 (9,96}
Tax effeet of expenses ¢ (income) that are 1ot detluctible white determining tasable profit:

Unwindinz of discount on security deposils for licenses (it} .39 0.66
[Jonation 0.68 104
Hedue itlem - (2.95)
Others (297 1.77
Tax expense as per Statement of Profit and Loss 842 {9.44)

Stunlficant compenents ol et deferved oy assets and Habilities for the vear ended March 31, 2022 are as fuflows;

Opening Balance  Recognised In Statement  Recounised  Recognised in Equity Cilosing balance
(Asat of Profit and Loss in OC1 {As at Mar 31, 2022)
Aprit OF, 2021}
Deferved tax Hability
- Impact of amortization of processing lees paid for the tenn oan vsing EIR - - - -
methad over the following vears
Tas eifect of items constiluting delerred tay assets
- Property plant and Equipment: Impact of differences between tax depreciation (] 1.28 - - 8.2
and depreciation amaortization charged in the financial statements
- Unabsorbed depreciation and cary forward of loss (refer foolnole) 8.6t (5.6 B - -
- Provision lor stock loss 133 (0.2 - - 1.14
- Provision for employee benclits 167 0.16 (0.0%) - 180
- Provision Toe cusiom duly pavable 106 9.13 - - 1.4%
- Allowanee lor bad and donbiiuf receivables 048 {030 - - 0.17
- [mpact of lease liabitity 10,51y 00 - - 240
- Others - 3.07 - - 7
19,60 {159 (.03) - 18,08
Net deferrved tax asset £9.60 (AN (303 - 18.08
Sipnificant components of set deferred tax assets and Jiahilities for the vear erded Mareh 3§, 2021 are as follows:
Opening Balanee  Recoguised in Statement  Recognised  Recognised in Equity Closing balance
(Asat of Proflt and Loss in QCI (As at Mar 3, 2021)
April 01, 2020)
Delerred tax labiligy
- tmpact of amortization of processing fees paid for ihe term loan using EIR - - - -
method over the followine vears
Tax efizct of ilems ¢ leferred {ax assels
- Propenty plant and Cquipment: Impact of differences between tax depreciation 382 112 - - 6.94
andd depreciation-amortization charged in the financial statemenls
- Unabsorbed depreciation and vamy Torward of loss (refer footnale) - 5.64 - - 8.61
- Provision for slock Joss 0.51 084 - - 135
- Provision lor employee benefits 1.4 .17 10,10y - 1.67
- Provision for cuslom duty pavable 08y .07 - - 1.U6
- Allowance lor bad and doubilist receivables 040 008 - - 043
- Impaet of Tease Habikity 10,60} L1 - - {850
126 944 (.10} - 19.60
Net deferred ax asset 10.26 9.4 (4, 10} - 19.60
Reconcillations el deferred tax Hibilittes/assets (net}
For the year ended Fou the year ended
Mareh 31, 2022 Mareh 31,2021
Opgrening bilance 19.60 10,26
Tax income [expense) <luring the year recognised in Starement of P, .C,H 3 {149 .44
Tax expense duzring the vear recoenised in Equity -
Tax incame {expense) during the vear recoenised in OC1 (0003
Closing fiatance 19.60
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Notes to Financial Statements for the yvear enced March 31, 2022
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17. Revenue from operations

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the yepr ended
March 31, 2021

Revenue from aperations
Sale of products - traded goods (Reter note 42)

18, Other income

645,95

27223

Total 445,95

272,23

For the year ended
Narch 31, 2022

For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2021

Interest income exrned on financial assets
- Interest on Bank deposits
- Interest on inter-coporale loan
- Interest on coupon received from bank
-Unwinding of discounts an security deposits given
Other non-operating income
- Visibility charges
- Trausfer from hedge reserve
- Lability/provisions no longer required written back
- Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
-‘Lease Hability written back (Refer note 34)
- Miscellancous Income

19, Changes in inventories of stock-in-trage

S

.06 0.08
L.13 -

- 0.09

18.90 16.97

- 0.21

- .71

1.99 0.22
0.00 -

5.67 6.33

3.92 0.00

Total 32,07 35,61

For the yvear ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2021

Closing stack
- Stock in trade - traded goods

Less .
Opening stock
- Stock in trade - raded goods

{Increase) / decrease
- Stock in trade - traded goods

9344 102,51
93.44 102.81
102.81 211.64
102.81 211.64
9.37 108.83

{This space has been intentionally left blank)
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20, Employce benefits expenses™

For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2022

For the vear ended
March 31, 2021

Salaries, wages and bonus {including deputed staft' cost) 29.52 24,42
Contribution o provident and other funds 2.54 2,85
Crraluity expenses (Reter Note 26(b)) 1.01 1.03
Siaff wellare expenses 0.37 0.18
Total 33.44 28.48
*Nel of recoveries
21. Depreciation and amortization expense
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Depreciation ol property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 3) 12.32 {2.34
Amortization ol intangible assets (Refer Note 4) 17.75 17.82
Amortization ol Right of use assets (Refer Note 34) 26,92 13.21
Total 56,99 43.37
22, Finance costs
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest expense for financial liabilities not classified at FVTPL 1.71 5.60
Iaterest on lease tiabitity (Refer note 3d) 6,84 3.81
Other borrowing costs (guarantee charges, etc.) .24 0.26
Interes! on delayed payment of statutory dues 2.06 0.01
Total 10.85 9.68

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
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23. Other expenses

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31,2021

Rent 2.42 2,60
Insurance 249 2.64
Strategic and technical fee 15,00 -
Repairs and maintenance
-Computers 241 2.09
-Others .30 0.85
Electricity, Fuel and water charges (net of recovery) 3.63 4.54
Advertising and sales promotion 3.06 2.25
Legal and Professional Fees i3.53 6.02
Travelling and conveyance 0.18 0.12
Payment {o auditors (Refer Note (1) below) 0.25 0.28
Corporate social responsibility expenditure (CSR) ( Refer note 33) 271 4,14
Marketing fees 6.47 3.23
Net loss on sale / discard of Property, Plant and Equipment including CWIP (net) - 0.49
Airport service charges 7.18 7.84
Comimission on collections 4.35 t.67
Warehouse and transportation 1.18 9.41
Packing charges 0.67 0.63
Detention charges - 0.00
Exchange differences (net) 1.24 3.22
Provision for bad and doubtful receivables (Refer noteti) of Note 5B} 0.99 0.28
Director's sitting fee 0.16 0.14
Miscellaneous expenses 2.37 3.0¢
Total 71,59 5545
Nate (i)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Payment to Auditor #:
For audit fee 0.11 0.15
For taxation matters 0.04 -
For other services 0.09 0.12
For reimbursment of expenses 0.01 0.01
Total 0.25 0.28

# Previeus year figures include GST
Current year figures include Rs 0.07 crores remuneration paid to predecessor auditor of the Company

24, Earnings Per Share (EPS)

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2022 Marvch 31, 2021
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to owners of the Company (Rs. in crores) 188.34 (30.14)
Weighted Average number of equity shares used for computing Earning Per Share 80,000,000 80,600,000
(Basic and Diluted}
Earning/(loss) Per Share (Basic) (in Rs.) 23.54 371
Earning/(loss) Per Share (Diluted) (in Rs.) 23.54 3.7
Face value per share {in Rs.) 10.00 10.00
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Delii Dty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : US2599DL2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

25, Significant acceunting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s [nd AS Financial Information requires management fo make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and labilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying ameunt of assets or liabilities attected in
future periods.

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the fitture and other key sources of estimation uncertainiy at the reperting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and labilitics within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Ind AS Financial Information was prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur,

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active
markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques ineluding the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs
such as liquidity risk. credit risk and volatility. Changes it assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
See Note 30 for turther disclosures.

Useful lives of property, plaut and equipment and intangible assets
The Company reviews the estimated useful tives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each reporting year, There was no
change in the useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as compared to year ended March 3§, 2021,

Contingent liabilities and provisions

The Company is involved in varicus tax matters, the outcome of which may not be tavorable to the Company Management in consultation with the tax
advisors assess the likelihood that apending cluim will succeed. The Company has applied its judgement and has recognized liabilities based on whether
additional amounts will be payable and has included as contingent where economic outflows are considered but net probabte,

Leases
Ind AS 116 requires the Company to recognize a right-of-use lease asset and lease liability for operating and tinance leases, The right-of-use asset is
measured as the sum of the lease liability, prepaid or acerued lease payments, any initial divect costs incurred and any other applicable amounts.

The identification and calculation of the lease liability requires the Company to make certain assumptions for each lease, including identitication of asset,
substantive right of substitution, right fo obtain economic benefits from use, lease term and discount rate implicit in each lease, which could significantly
impact the gross lease liability, the duration and the present value of the lease liability. When caleulating the lease term, the Company considers the
renewal, cancellation and termination rights available to the Company and the lessor, The Company determines the discount rate by calculating the
incremental borrowing rate on a collateralized basis at the commencement of a lease or upon a change in the lease term.

{This spacc has been intentionally fett blank)
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26, Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

a) Defined Contribution plans

The Company makes Provident Fund comtributions which are defined contribution plans, tor qualitying employees. Under the Schemes, the Company is
required to contribute a specified percentage of the payrell costs to fund the benefits, The Company recognised Rs, 2,54 crores (March 31, 2021 Rs. 2.85
crores} for Provident Fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in
the rules of the schemes,

b} Defined Benefit plans - gratuity (unfunded)

The Company bas a delined benefit gratuity plan (unfunded). Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure @
|5 days of last drawn basic salary lor each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months.

These plans typically expose the Company o acturial risks such as interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

Interest rate risk
A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the planned liabilities

Longevity risk
The present vahie of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reterence 1o the best estimate of the merality of planned participants both during and after
the employment. An increase in the life expentney of the planned participants will increase the planned liabilities,

Salary risk
The present value of the defined benetit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of planned participants. As such an increase in salary of the
planned participants will increase the planned liabilities.

No ather post retirement benefits are provided to the employees.
The foflowing tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statemend of Profit and Loss and the Fended status and amounts

Plan assets at the year end, at Fair value
Net employee benefit expense (recognized in Employee Cost)

For the vear ended For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cuirent Service Cost 0.67 0.68
Net Interest Cost 0.34 0.35
1.01 1,03
Ameunt recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended For the year ended
ivarch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Actuarial gain/ (loss) due to DBO experience {0.19) 0.00n
Actuarial gain/ {loss} due te DBO financial assumption changes 0.08 {0.37)
Actuarial gain/ (foss) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (10 {0.38)
Balance sheet
As af As at
March 3, 2022 March 3§, 2021
Defined benetit obligation (5.32) (4.95)

Fair value of plan assets - -
Plan asset / (liability) (5.32) {4.95)




Dethi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN 1 US2599DL2009PTC191963)

Notes te Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
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Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as folows:

For the year ended
Marel 31, 2022

For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2021

Opening defined benefit ebligation 4.95 5.4
Interest cost 0.34 0.35
Current service cost 0.67 0.68
Benetils paid (0.533) (0.84)
Actuarial losses/ (gain) on obligation-experience {0.1h) (1.38)
Ciosing defined benefit obligation 5.32 4.98
The prineipal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation for the Company's plans are shown helow:
Gratuity
As at Asat
Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Discount rate (in 94 7.26% 6.79%
Salary Escalation {in %) 7.00% 7.00%
Expected rate of return on assets - -
Attrition rale {in %)

Up to 30 Years 40.00% 40.00%

From 31 to 44 years 15.00% 15.00%

Above 44 years £.00% 1.00%

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields available on Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the

obligations.

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply

and demand in the employment market,

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

As at Marel 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Year |
Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5
Next 5 years

Experience Adjustments

0,73 (.58
0.68 0.63
0.50 0.54
(.40 0.39
0.36 .32
2.65 2.48

Particalars March 31, 2022 March 31,2021 | Mareh 31,2020 ‘“*’2';:’93 L “"“2';;7:‘83 L
Detined benefit obligation 5.32 4.95 sS4 3.8 2.92
Plan assets - - - - .
Surplus / (Defigit) {5.32) {4.95) (5.14) (3.78) {2.92)
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities {loss)/gain 0.08 (0.37) 0.21) (0.19) (0.07)
Experience adjustments on plan assets (loss)/gain - - . - R
Gratuity Plan
Assumptions

Scaositivity Level

March 31, 2022

March 3E, 2021

Impact on defined benefit pbligation
March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Discount riake

Future salary increases

0.5% increase 0.5% decrease

0.5% increase

1.5% decrease

0.5% increase 0.5% decrease

0.5% increase

0.5% decrease

(0.19) 0.20

0.18

{0.17)

(0.18) 0,19

0.18

(0.t7)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation s a result of reasonable changes in key
assumptions occurring at the end of the year. Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change not caleulated.

The average duration of the defined benefit plan at the end of the reporting period is 6.1 years ( March 31, 2021: 5.90 years).
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27. A Contingent Habilities and Cammitments (to the extent et provided for)
{i} Contingent Linhilities
(a} Claims against the Company ot acknonielged as debt

Asat As ol
March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
1.59 1.24

Income tax*

*income tox demand for AV 2017-18 and AY 201819 on aecount of certain disallowances, the Company has filed an appeal against the demands ol (he assessiment years. The Company do not
expect any outflow on this account.

(b) The Company had filed three refund applications (fer thres quarters) dated January 31, 2018 under section | 1{B) of Ceniral Excise Act, 194 secking refund of Rs. 460,62 Crores being the
service (ax and cess paid on license fees, markeling lees, aitport services charges and utility charges during the period Octaber 2016 (o June 2017 for services rendered 1o the Company at the duly-
free shops at T-3, 16l Airport, Delbi, Such refund claims were filed in pursuance of the decision of the CESTAT Mubai in Commissioner of Serviee Tax - VI, Mumbai vs. Fleminge Duty Free Pyt
Ltd 2048 (8) GSTL 181 (Tri, Munbai) {Flemingo) wherein it was held that service tax on ticense fee was not payable since services were provided outside taxable lerriiory.

Inrespeet of the said retiznd applications, the Company received a Show Cause Notice (SON) dated Angust 24, 2018 that refund claims for the periad October 246 1o Tanuary 2017 were barred by
limitation anel refund cannot be processed. Vide order dated September 06, 2018, the Assistant Commissioner, CGST held that ondy the period of October 2016 1o Decensher 2016 is barred by
limitation and denied refund of Rs, (2,78 Crores. The balance amount of Rs, 27.84 Crores was allowed in favor of lhe Conzpany and subsequently relunded to the Company, which was recognized
as income in Statement of Prolit and Loss during the gquarter and six months ended September 30, 2018 when this refund was received, The Departiment filed an appeal against the aforesaid Order
dated Seplember 06, 2018 before Commissionzr (Appeals) to the extent refund of Rs, 27.84 Crores hekd 1o be payable to the Company. The said appeal of the Department has been rejected by the
Connnissioner (Appeals) vide Order dated May 18, 2020, On August 04, 2020 the Department filed an appenl befere the CESTAT. New Dethi against the order of Commissioner (Appeal) dated
May (8. 2020,

As against denial of refund of Rs 12,78 Crores, the Company liled an appeal before (he Commissioner {Appeals) who rejected the appeal on May 10, 2019 and upheld the Order dated September 06,
2018, The Company tiled an appeal before the CESTAT, New Delhi who allowed the appeal of the Company vide its Order dated August 14, 2019 and heid that since service tax was nol payable on
license fee, (he limitalion prescribed under Section | 1B of the Central Excise Act, 1944 has no application. Accordingly. refund of Rs. 12.78 Crores is allowed in favor of the Company. The
Departnient served a capy of the appeal along with application for stay against the CESTAT Crder daled August i, 20[49 before the Delhi High Court in March 2020 which has yet to be listed,

The Company lad also filed application dated December 31, 2018 with the Depariment for the period April 2010 te September 2036 secking relund of service tax and eess amounting o Rs.182.13
Crores paid on the inpit services (concession fee, marketing fee, airport servive charges and utility charaes) rendered to the Company at the duty-free shops al T-3, 1G] Airpor, Dellsi. The Assistant
Commissioner issued he Order dated June 26, 2019 rejecting the claim filed by the Company that 1he Duty-fiee shops are i non-taxable territory. The Company filed an appeal on August §7, 2019
against the Assistartl Commissioner's Order before Consmissioner LAppealst and received an Order dated May 26, 2020 in favour of the Company allowing the refund of Rs. 182.13 Crores, The
Company requesied the Asst. Commissioner o process the refind based on the Order passed by the Consmissioner (Appeals). The Assistant Commissioner issued a SCN daled August 04, 2020
asking the Company to expiain that the relund claim is rot kit by the bar of unjust enrichment as incidence of duty appears to be passed by the Company to their customers at the time of sale of
zoods, Subsequently on Angnst 04, 2020 the Department filed an appeal before the CESTAT, New Delli against the Order of Commissioner (Appeals) dated May 26, 2020, The Company filed a
reply before the CESTAT on December 24, 2028 against the department’s appeal dated August 4, 2020 before the CESTAT. The learing on the matier is scheduled for 261k May, 2022,

I the meanwhile, the Assistan: Commissioner issued two separate Orders dated December [0, 2020 on (e respective SCNs and rejected the refund of service tax of Rs 182,13 crores und Rs 12,78
erares, The Company fHled a rectification / recall request under Section 74 of the Finance Acl, 1994 dated December 23, 2020 against hoth the rejection Crders before the Prinvipa Commissioner
and the Assistant Commissioner, Subsequenily the Company also filed an Appeal against both the rejection Orders of the Assistant Comissioner, before the Commissioner {Appeals) on February
15,2021,

21 tor refund of Rs, 182,13 crores and Rs. 12.78 crores, upholding the Order-in-Original passed by (he Assistant Commissioner
and Rs. 12.78 crores. The Company has filed appeals ngainst both the Orders of Commissioner Appeals belore CESTAT on

The Company has received Order-in-Appenl dated September 24, 2
both dated December 10, 2020 lor the amaunis of Rs. 182,13 crores
November 03, 2021, that is currently pending disposal,

Having regard to status ol matters reterred nbove and in view of isherent uncertainty in predating finat outcome of above litigatians, involving retunds, which is sub-judice, refund of Rs. 27.84
Crores {as a March 31,2021 - Rs. 27.84 crores) received in an eardier vear bas bheen considerad as contingent liability by the managemen.

(i} Capital Commitmenis

Asat Asat
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Estimated amount of contracts reinaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of capital advancesy 0,67 0.37

27. B The Campany. as per its entitlement had filed GST refursd applications aggregating to Rs.259.40 crores pertaining lo the period July 01 2017 1o March 31 2021, Due 1o absence of elarity and
precedence regarding eligibility of duty free business for claiming refinsd of Isput tax credit {ITC), all expenses {other than Iraded goods) were accounted for as cost (inclusive of ITC) upto Marels
3. 2021 while the Company had continued 1o clain: all eligible 1TC in its monthly GST filings,

Till April 30 2022, the Company has been grantedl and received GST refunds agprepating to Rs. 180.43 crores {including Rs.{2.05 crores received subsequent to year ended March 31 2022)
pertaining (o the period uplo March 31 202) which have beer aceounted for and presented as ‘Exceptional Income” in these finmncial statements. Consequent to acceptance and processing of refund
applications by the GST authoritics and subsequent receipt ol refund amount, the Company has accounted tor all eligible ITC for the current Bnancial vear, in ils books of account,
Out of the baknce GST refunds aggrepating io Rs.78.97 crotes pertaining 1o the period upto March 31, 2021, (hat ace yel to be granted and/ received. the management has assessed and believes that;
a. Refunds aggregating to Rs.16.82 crores are in the nature of conlingent assets afthough refunds of similar nature have already been allowed: and shoukd be aceounted for as income, only on
receipt of retuynd amount from 1he authorities: and
b, Retunds aggregating to Rs.62.15 crores are comtingent in nature as the clains have been contested by the authorities due to procedural lapses by the Company while filing (he refund claims, and
shoukd be accounted for as income, on receipt of refund amount from the authorities.
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28A, Financial assets and labilities

The aecounting classitication of each category of financial instrument. their canving ameunts and their fair values are set outl below:

As at dMarveh 31, 2022

Financial Assets

[Fair value through
profit or loss

Fair value through  Amortised cost

other comprehensive

Total earryieg vilue

Total fair vafue

income
Loans - - 67,00 67.00 67.00
Cash and cash equivalents - - 67.65 67.68 67.65
Other finanvial assels - - 245.78 245.78 245,78
Taotal - - 86,43 380.43 380.43

Finnecinl Liabilities

Fair value through
profit or loss

Fair value through  Amortised cost

other comprehensive

Taotal carrying value

Total fair value

income
Borrowings B . G.01 201 .01
Trade payables - - 121.60 121.60 121,60
Lease Liabililies - - 80.88 80.88 30,88
Other financial ligbilities - - 16.63 16.65 16.65
Total - - 228,14 228.14 228.14
As at Mareh 31, 2021
Financial Assets Fair vilue through.  Fair value throngh  Amortised cost Total carrying value Total fair value

profit ar loss other comprehensive

income
[.oans - - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - B 12,53 12,55 12,33
Other financial assets - - 196.37 196.37 156.37
Total - - 208,92 208.92 208,92
Financial Eiabilities Fair value through  Fair value through  Amortised cost Total carrying value Total fair value

profit or loss other comprehensive

income
Borrowings - - 3t L4 31
Trade payables - - 6l.61 61.61 61.61
Lease Liabilities - - 99.88 94.38 99,88
Other linancial liabilities - - 4,19 4.1% 4.19
Totat - - 196.82 196.82 196.82

28B. Fair values

The carrying amount of all financiai assets and fiabilities (except for those instnuments carvied at fair value} appearing in the Financial Statements is reasonable approximation of fair

values,

Assumption used in estimating the faic vafues

The fair value of the financiat assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing pmtics, other thas ing

ferced or liquidation sale.

29, [Fair value hierarehy

The fair vatue of financial instrumenis as referred 1o in nole (28A) above has been classificd into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation techaique. The hierarchy
gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identicat assels or labilities |Level | measurements} and lowest priority to unobservable inputs [Level 3 measurements].
Level 1: Quoted prices for identical instruments in an active market;
Level 2: Directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e, derived from prices} observable market inpults, other than Level { inputs; and
Level 3: Inputs which are not based on abservable market data {unobservable inputs). Fair values are detenained in whele or in part using a net assel value or valuation model based on
assumptions (hat are peither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on avaitable market dat.

Particulars

As at
Mareh 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Carring value TFair Valug Carring value

Segurily deposits

Falr Value

186.33 186.33

There have been no transfers between Levet | . Level 2 and 1
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30. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans, borrowings and trade and other payables. The syain purpose of these tinancial
liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to support its operations, The Company's principal financial assets include loans, trade receivables, and cash and
cash equivalents thal derive divectly from its operations, The Company alsa enters into derivative transactions,

The Company is exposed (o market risk, eredit risk and liquidity risk, The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s
financtal risk activilies are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Company’s policies and risk objectives, All devivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by senior management team (hat have (he appropriate
skills, experience and supervision, It is the Company’s policy thal no trading in derivatives lor speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of {hese risks, which are summarised below.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrament will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three
types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and comumadity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include
leans and borrowings, loans and devivative financiaf instruments,

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections refate fo the position as at March 31, 2022 and as at March 31, 2021,

The sensitivily analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amovnt of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt and derivatives and the
proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant and on the basis of hedge designations in place as at March 31, 2022 and as at March 31, 2021,
The analysis exclude the impact of mevements in market variables on the carrying vatues of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions: and the non-
financial assets and liabilities of foreign operations.

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financiaé
finbilitics held as at March 31, 2022 and as at March 31, 2021,

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrament will fluctuate bocause of changes in market interest rates. The Company's
exposure to the risk of changes in market inferest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates,

Fnterest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the seasitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that parion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of
hedge accounting. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profir before tax is affected through the impact en loating rate berrowings, as follows:

X , Effect on
X . Increase/Decrease in basis .
Financial year Currency . profit/(loss)
point
before tax
INR +5{ (0.05)
ar 2
March 31, 202 NR X7 G
- INR +50) {0.08)
March 31, 2021 INR T T0%

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment,




Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limidted
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
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Foreign currency risk

Foreign curvency sensitivity

The toflowing tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the
Company's profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. The Company's exposure to foreign currency changes for all other

currencies is not material
Financial vear Change in rate Effect on profit before tax
March 31, 2022
5% 0.02
GBP
-5% (0.02)
5% (.05
Euro -
-5% {0.05}
5% (011}
CHF
-5% 0.11
5% (0.01)
SGD
-5% 0.0
5% (0.96)
USD
-5% 0.96
Finaneial Year Change in rate Effect on profit before tax
March 31,2021
3% (.00
GBP
-5% (0.00)
Euro 5% 0.00
) -5% (0.00)
5% (6.01)
CHF
-5% 0.01
3% (0.11)
SGD
-5% 0.11
5% 0,17
usD :
-5% (0.17)

Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at March 31, 2022 and March 3§, 2021
Foreign currency exposures on account of receivable/pavables not hedged by derivative instruments are as follows:

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Particulars Amount in foreign Amount in INR Amo“_“.t m tm.'e:gn Amount in INR
currency (in Crores) { in Crores) currency {in (in Crores)
Crores)
Receivable
GBP (.00 0.60 0.00 0.01
Euro 0.01 113 0.61 0,88
CHF 0.00 0.04 0.1 0.42
SGD - - - -
UsD 0.32 23.86 0.26 18.67
TFotal 0.33 25.03 0,27 19.98
Payables
GBP 0,01 0.92 0.00 0.17
Eure 0.02 1.39 0.02 2.4
CHF 0.03 2.85 0.01 0.92
SGD .01 0.61 0,04 2,29
USD (.68 52,04 0.33 24,19
Total 0,75 57.81 0.41 29.69
Balance with banks in EEFC accounts and Cash on hand
GBP 0.01 1.29 0.00 .19
Euro 0.01 1,19 0.02 1.33
CHF 6,01 0,69 0.00 0.28
SGD 0.01 041 0.60 0.03
UsD 0.12 9.00 0,12 3.88
Fotal .16 12,57 .14 10,72
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Dethi Duty Free Services Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements tor the year ended March 31, 2022
{Amouat in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will nol meet its obligations under a linancial instrument or customer conlract, leading to a financial loss, The Company is
mainly exposed to credil risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables and other financial assets) and from its financing activities, including deposits
with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables- Customer credit risk is managed by (he Company through credit approvals, establishing eredit limits and continuously monitoring the
creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

The Company’s maxinuim exposure 1o credit risk for the components of the balance sheel as at March 31, 2022 and as at Mareh 31, 2021 is the carrying amouats as
ittustrated in note 11,

Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shoriage of funds on a regular basis. The Company’s objective is fo maintain a balance between contiruity of funding and
Nexibility through the use of bank overdralis and bank loans. The Company assessed the cancentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be
low. The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debl maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with exisling lenders.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at March 31, 2022 based on contractual undiscounted payments,

On demand Less than 3 months 3 to 12 months I to 5 years > 5 years Total

- 149.21 28.55 60.28 - 238.05

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Coempany’s financial lisbilitics as at March 31, 2021 based on contractual undiscounted payments.

On demand Less than 3 months 3 to 12 months 1 to S years > 5 years Total

11.27 74.99 27.79 99.42 - 21346

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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31, Copiaal management

For the pupose of the Company™s capital management. capital inclides issued equity capital, and aff ether equily reserves attrbutable 1o the ety holders. The prmary objective of the Company’s capilal
managanent is 1o maximise the sharcholder value,

The Company manages its capital stacune and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic comditions i the requirements of the linancial covenanis, Te maintain or adjust the capital structere, e
Company may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholders, retim capital to sharcholders or issue new shires. The Company mandtos capital using g itio, which is net debt divided by tolal capital plus net
debt as derived helow. Tlhe Company’™s palicy is 1o keep 1he gearing ratio below 757 annually.

At March 31, 2022 Al Sbarel 31, 2021
Bebt - Barrowinzs (including short term bonvwines) .09 RIWE]
Deht{A) 9,01 RIBE]
Capital Componsats
Total Equity (B 4L 12967
Caphiod and debt {A+R) 479.14] 081
Geuring rutio (%) [A/(AHDY 1.88"%% RGIY

At March R, 2022, the Company had available undmwn committed bomrowing of Rs, Yt crore (March 31, 202 1; Rz, ¥%,73 crores} from cash credit,

In order to achteve this vverall objective. tie Company’s capitat management, amongst ofher things. aims to cnsure that it mcets financial covenants attached to the inlerest-bearing leans and borrowings that define
1l stiucture requirements. Breachies in meeting the Binancial covenants would permif the bank 1o immedintely call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the linancial covenants of any inleresi-
ng loans and borrowing in the curreat year,

No changes were made in the objectives, policies o processes for managing capifal during the year endad March 31, 2022 and during the year enced March 3, 2021,

12, Details of dugs to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The Company has cerfain dues to sipplicrs registered under Micro. Small and Medium Entemrises Development Act, 2006 i* MSMED Acl*). The disclosures parsuant to the said MSYER? Act are as Toilows:

Pariicntars AsaeMarchk 31, | Asat March M,
2022 21
Principat amow dug 1o suppliars registerad unger the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as sl vear col® ERE] 1.M)
Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and rzmaining unpaid as at vear end B -
Principal amons paid to suppiiers registeved under the MSMEDR Aci, biyond il appeintsd day during the year -
Interest padd, other Ok undar Section 16 oL MSMED Acl, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, bevond the appointed day during the Year - -
Interest paid, under Section 16 0T MSMED Acl, to suppliers vegisiered under the MSMED Act. bevond the appointed ay during the year - -
interest due and pavable wwards supp registered uinder MSMED Act. Yoy pavments alrzady made - -
Further interest remaining due and pavable Tor eatlier vears B _
er nate 12 and 13,
A\ Corpurate Sucial Responsibility
For the vear ended For the year ented
Parliculnrs
Alarch 3§, 2022 Mlarch 3L, 2021
Contribution to healthcare, education and other community developinent projects 271 414
1. Amount required (o be spent under Section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013 a7 414
2. Amouny of expenditire incurred:
(1) Censtruction - acquisition of an assel - -
(i) On purposes other than (i} above 271 414
3. Short fadt ar the end of the year - -
4. Total of previous years shonfall N ~
3. Reason for shorttalt NA NA
6. Nature of CSR aclivilies Pramoting Education | Promoting Edacation
Inchling vocationat including vocational
skills: Gender equality, |skills; Gender equality,
WOl empowennenl | women empowerment
and livelihood: and Hvelihood;
Promoling heajth care | Promoting health care
inciuding preventive including preventive
licalth care licalth care
7. Details of related party transactions. in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard L6 nn
8. Where a provision is made with respect to aliability incurred by entering to a contractual obfigation, the NA NA
movements in the provision during the year
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34, Leases

(i} Delli intemational Airport Limited ' DIAL'Y had 2ntered iito Operation, Management and Developiment Agreement (OMDA) Aimports Aushority ol Indlia £ AAF), which gives DLAL an exclusive right (o opein:
maintain, develop. modemise and manage the hilire Gandhi Intemational Airport (GIAY New Dellii °Dellii Aliport’y on a revenue sharing model Tor the period mentioned in e said OMDA. I he year 2018,
Delhi Internationai Atmpett Limited CDIAL Y Bas aiven license 1o the Company for ninning the daty free operalions at Delhi Almont on payments of specified sum. The license fees for the duty liee sulfets are based

o higher of the revenue share mmount and the Actual Monthly Guarantee (MG amount cafenlated in the manner set out in the Eicense agreements entered by the Company with DEAL.

Tlie Company has also entered inlo centain cancellable operating tease agreements mainly for oiTiee premises and warehouses, The Company as alse entercl into 2 non-cancellable agreement for o warehuuse in
respeet of which the Company s gven inteeest free security deposits of Rs, 11,04 crores {As at March 31, 2021 Rs, 1104 crores),

(i) With effect lrom | April 2014, the Company has adupted Il AS 116, "Leases’ and applied 1o all lease contraets existing on | April, 2019 using the moditied retospevtive method and has 1aken the commlative
adiustment 1o retainel vamings, on the date of initial applicatien (1 April 20193 Right-of-use (RO assets at | April, 2019 for keases previously classilied as operating leases were recopnised and menstred al an
amount equal to fease liability tadiusted for any related prepayments). The Company has elected not to apply the requirenents of Ind AS 116 10 shon-term leases.

It vespect of certain duty free antlels where MMG e not fixed throughoul the term, the management hos assessed That the payments do not {ullil the defnition of lease payments tie, not fived or in subslance fixed
atdd nol variable payments Hoked 1o an lndex) and thus are net 1o be included in the Joase payments for the pumpose of compuling Izase Babifity under Ind A8 {16 aml presealed separately in the Siatement of Profit
ainl Loss as concession fees,

Following are the changes in the carmying value of right of use assels for the year ended March 3. 21

Right af use assels

Following are the changes in the carvying value of fight of use assels :
Rigin ot use assets

BT AL USC s
Parliculurs As At Asat
March 31, 2622 NMareh 31, 201
S_hu;n& Furniture Total Shops & Warelouse TFurniture asnd Totat
Warehouse | and fixtures xtures
Opening Balance Y - 27.84 2041 - 20.41
Addidens 298 2,98 .04 - 40.64
Deletions - - - - - -
Depreciation 2681 [1X)E] 26,92 1328 - £3.21
Closing Batanee 7108 289 73,89 y7.84 - 97.84
The following is the tmovement in lease lisbiiities «
Asat Asal
Particulars Alarch 31, March 3,
2022 n2l
Lease Eabilily
Opening Balanee Y98N 2276
Addition 298 HAA
Finance cost acemiad during the year A4 81
Lease liabilily writlen off (567} {4 H
Paytnent of fease liabilittes {2362y th.5n
Foreign exchange Juss 0,47 {0.840)
Cluosing Batanee £0.88 49,88

In view of the Covid- 19 ombreak refermed to ia Note 39, DIAL on March 30, 2020 decicfo (o suspend the Jevy and payment of MM G amount for the period from March [, 2020 Gill March 31, 2022 under the
License Agreement, accordingly the Company has reassessed tie bease liability and wiitien back lease liability of Rs 5,67 Crores (Previous year Rs. 6,13 Crores).

The fallawing is the beeak-up ol cureent and nor-current lease Habilities -;

Asat Asat
Partdeulars March 3t | March M,

20382 021
Mo - eurrent S50 SiLaY
Current 19.19
Tatal 92.88

Fullowing umeunt has been recagnied b statement of prolit and loss

For the year Fur the year

Parileulars ended darch ended
March 31,
i1, 2022
N 2021
[repreciationsamontisation on Fight 1o e assel 2642 1221
Interest on lease fability AN aR1
Foreign exchange {gain) - loss s {fL8
Lease lisbility writlen off (RN 16.11)
Totad amount recugnised in sialesent of profi sl loss 28,55 084

The table belew summarises the maturity profile of the Corpamy's lease liabiBuies based on comtrctual uadisceunted payments,

[.es5 than 3 months fess than | to Syears > 5 yeurs Tolal
1 year
March 3, 2022 2093 SU.86 - $.79
March M, 2024 2601 441 - 116,54

A5, Seument Reporting
Faetars nsel to klentify the entities

0 » Lhe basis of organi

or:

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemal reponting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM L The COIM is considerad o be the Beard of Birectors who makes
strategic devisions and is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the vperating segents,

The principal activity of the company is sale of duty free prodects including liquor, confectionery, (wbaceo, perfinme and consmetics at Termina? X i Indira Gandbi Internatiosal Aiport) in Delhi . Hence, there is only
oac reportable segment. As (he Company’s business activities falls within a single aperating segment viz. “sale of traded goods™ and is a single geogvaphical segment. the disclosure requiraments of Ind AS- 10%
“Segment Reponing” are not applicable.

No single custoster has accousted tor iore Gian 1145 oF the total revenue, %
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Notes to Financial Statenents for the year ended March 31, 2022

{Amount it Rupres crove, unless utherwise stated)

37k

Related party trausactions

List of retated parties and nature of retattons i

with wham transactions have taken place during Hie vear.

Description of relationship

(i) Entities witl joint centrel over the reporting entity
Yalorvin Limited*
GMR Airports Limited

Dellsi International Airport Limited (DIAL)

*Transaction have taken phice with Aer Rinta Intemational ept (Holding company of Yatervin Limited)

(ii) Entities in which companies covered in {i) exercise
significant influence

(iii) Key Manaeement Personnel (KNIP)

(ivy Entities in whicl: persons covered abave can exercise
significant in luence

Dellsi Airport Pasking Services Privale Limited
Celebi Delhi Carpo Management ([) Private Limiled
GMR Adrport Developers Limited
Mr. R S S L N Bhaskarudu (Independent Director) (Till September 14, 2021)
Ms, Kameshwari Vissa (Independent Director)
Mr, Pawan Kunar Malkotra (Independent Director)
NIr. Emandi Sankara Rao (Independent Director) (w,e.f, November 9, 2021 )

CGIMVR Vazalakslani Foundation

Names of refated parties

Note : The above list of related pariies and relationship are as certitied by the management.

Dretails of refated party transactions and balaitees outséatcting

Particulars Entities with joint control] Entitics in whicll | Key Managenwnt | Entétles tn which Total
aver the reporting entity { companies eovered| Personnel (KMP) | persons covered in
it (i) above (3} tu {ii) abave can
excreise significaat exercise significant
influence Difluence
Details of related party transactions
Concession Fee {including lease paymenty#
- Dellvd lemational Airpost Limited 201.20 201.20
(102,07} (1e2.0m
Marketing fee
- Dethi Intemnational Airport Limiled 6,47 oy
{3.23) 3.2
Abrport sevvice chavzes
- Dedhi International Airport Limited 7.8 118
{7.84) {7.84)
Alvport entry pass chavges
- Delhi international Airport Limited 0.0t 0.0¢
10,02) (0.432)
Eleetricity & Water charges
- Delhi Intemational Airport Limited 1,63 363
h54y h54)
Repairs & maintenance charges - athers
- Dellsi lntemational Airpors Limiled 0.37 037
(0.40) (0,403
Reut
- Delhd hulerazional Aigert Limited 242 242
{2,600 (2.60}
Degruted staff cost
- Delhi International Airport Limited [1X4]] 0.61
{0.60} 0.60)
Warehouse charges
- Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited - -
(0,28} 10.28)




Dethi Duty Free Seeviees Private Limited (CIN : US25399DLI0NYETCI9E963)

Notes to Fhnaneial Statements for e year ended Maveh 31, 2022

(Amannt tn Rapees erore, unless vthervise stated)

Partieulars Eattitivs with joint control | Entities inwhicl | Wey Management | Entitles fa swhich Total
over the reperting entity | companies coveved | Pevsomtel (KMPY | persons covered in
in (i) above (1} tu {ii) above can
exercise significant exercise significant
influence influence
Terminal, Storage and Processing {TSP) cliarpes
-Celebi Dethi Carge Management (I) Private Limited 0,36 0.36
{001 (0.4
Professional Fees
=GR Alirports Limited (GAL) 10.00 10.00
-) (-}
- Aer Rinnta Intemmationad opt (ARD) 5.00 5.00
(-} (-)
Interest income
- GMR Airport Developers Limited i3 1.13
{-) )
CSR Donation
- GNIR Varalakshmi Foundation 1,76 176
(2.7 {277}
Ianterim dividend paid/Payvable
- Delli Intemational Airport Limited 2395 23,95
(-} -)
- GMR Aimperis Limited 8.17 8.17
(-} -
- Yalorvin Limiled 1587 15.87
1S ] {-)
Reimbursement veceived of expenses incurred en their belalf
- Yalorvin Limited - -
{0.90) (0,90}
- Delhi Internazional Airport Linited 4.75 4.75
-) -
- GMR Afrports Limited - .
{0,335} (£.35)
- GNMR [nfrastructure Limited - -
(0.35) 0.35)
Directors sitting fees
- Mr, R SS L N Bhaskarudu 0.03 0,03
(C.06) {0.06)
- Ms. Kameshwari Vissa 203 0.05
9.05) (0.05)
- Mr. Emandi Sankara Rao 0.03 0.03
-} -)
= Mr. Pawan Kwmar Mathoira 0.06 0.06
(0.06) {0.06)




Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CEN : US2599DL2G0OPTC191963)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2022

(Amount in Rupees crave, unbess otherwise stated)

Particulars Entities with joint control | Entities inwhich | Key Management | Entitles in which ‘Fotal
aver the reporting entity § companies covered| Personnel (KMP) | persons covered in
in (1) abnve {i) to (i) above can
exercise significant exercise significant
influeaice influence
Balanees outstynding at at Maveh 31, 2022 (As at Mageh 31
2021}
Trade Pavables
- Delhi Bternationat Airport Limited 32,435 32.58
{19.05) (19.0%)
- Yalorvin Limiled - .
{0.97) 097
- Aer Rianta International opt 1.69 1.69
-} (-}
-GMR Airports Limited 4.e2 442
) -)
Dividend pavable
- Yalorvin Limited 14.29 14.29
() )
Other Finaneial Assets - Amount recoverable
- Celebi Dethi Carpo Management (3} Private Limited 0.06 0,06
(0.10} 0.1
- Yatorvin Limiled R . -
(.23} {0.23}
- Delhi [nternational Aimort Limited 2.01 .01
t-) )
- Aer Rianta International cpt 0.08 0.00
) 2
- GMR lnfrastructure Limited 0.20 0,20
{0.35) {0,353
= GMR Aimpors Limited - -
{035 (63353
Otlter assets- Adhvances fo suppliers
- GMR Airports Limiled T.86 7.86
(-) -
Interest acerued
- GNIR Airport Developers Linzited 1.13 [.13
(-} )
Laan given
- GNMIR Adrport Developers Limited 67.00 67.00
[R! i
Security deposits given
- Dellhi International Adrport Limited ** 177.81 §717.81
(159.63) (159.63)
- Delli Airport Parking Services Private Linsited . -
0.14) (0143

') 0.00 implies value fess than Rs, 1,00,000,

Previcus year figures have been shown in brackels.

# Concession fees is net of lease paywent anounting Rs. 3.67 crores (Previous year Rs 1.47 crores) en pecound of IND AS 16, In view of the Covid- 19 oulbreak referred to in
Note 36, DIAL decided to suspend the fevy and payment ol MMG amount under the License Aureemens, accordingly the Company has reassessed the lease liability and
written back lease linbility of Rs 5.67 Crores {year ended March 31, 2021 Rs, 6,33 Crores)

#* Security Deposit outstanding as disclosed above is the carrying amount in books at amortised cost, Total security deposit given as at March 31, 2022 is Rs, 23747 Crores

(March 21, 2021: Rs. 237 47 Crores),

Note

I, The sates/ provision el services to and purchase/provision of services from related parties are made on tenns equivalent to those that prevail s anit's length transactions,
Outstanding balances as at the year are unsecured and interest free (cther than foan given) and settlement occurs iy cash,

2, No amount lias been written afffarovided tor or wrillen back in respect of amount receivable from or pavable 1o the related parties,




Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : US2899DL2009PTC191963)
Notes tn Financial Statements for the yeav ended Mareh 3, 2022

(Amount i Rupees crare, unless otherwise stated)

38, Transier Pricing

The Company has established a comprehensive system of mainlenanee of information and documents as required by the transler pricing legislation under sections 92-92F ol
the Income-lax Act. 1961, Since 1he law requires existence of sucl information and documentation to be contemporancous in nature, the Company is in the process of
updating the documentation tor transactions entered mlo with the holding compaity and other associated enterprises during the financind year and expects such records o be in
existence latest by the due date as required under that Jaw, The management is of the apinion that its transaclions are at ann's fength so that the aforesaid Jegislation will not
have any impact on (he financial statements, particularly on (he amount of tax expense and ihat of provision for taxation,

30, Estimation of wneertainties relating to tee global health pandemic from COVID-19 {COVID-19):

With the rapid development of the COVID-19 outbreak. many countries have required entities to limit or suspend business operations and implemented travel restrictions and
quasantine measures. As a quarantine measurc. pationwide lockdown was anzounced in India from Mareh 25, 2020 which was gradually released from May 25, 2020,
although intemational irave! continues lo be severely disrupied with international flights being permitted enly on & case-lo-case basis. This has significantly impacted (he
operations of the Company duering the lockdown and thereafier.

The Company has made detailed assessment of its liguidily position, including making allernate arrangements for funding from its bankers ele. for the next one year, and of the
recoverability of carrying values of its assets as at March 3%, 2022 and has concluded that there are no material adjustments requized in the Financial Statements and will be
able (o meel all of its oblivations as well as recover the carrving mmount of ifs assels as on March 31, 2022,

In developing the assumplions relating to the possible future unceraintics in the giobal econvmic conditions because ol (his pandemic, the Managemenr! has considered the
impact trom a prolonged Jock-down situation; ravel restrictions being continued o be imposed by India and other countries even after lifiing of the lockdown, customers
poslponing their discretionary spending, continued restzicticns on the wumber of intermational flights, inernal and external infermation avaitable up to the date of approval of
these Financinl Statements. However, the impact of the COVID19 pandemic on the business will depend o future evelopments thae cammot be reliably predicted, The impact
of e COVID1S pandentic might be different from that estimated as at the date oFapproval of these Financial Statements and the Company will closely moenitor any material
changes to future economic conditions,

4tk Subsequent event:
Subsequent o the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company received a Demand cum Show Cause Notice dated 21 April 2022, based on special audit conducted under Section
T2 of Finanee Act, 1994 for (he sccond half of financial year 2016-17 and period 1 April 2017 til1 30 June 2017, wherein The Commissioner of Central Tax and CGST, Delhi
{“Depaciment™) has sought to recover service tax dues alongwith interest and penalty ppgregating 1o Rs. 46.16 crores pertaining o (he said period refated 1o inpul 1ax credit
and olher malters, The Company. through is legal counsel has filed a writ petition before High Court of Dellsi on 26 April 2022, chaflenging the initiation of special audit and
consequeatial Demand cum Show Cause Notice mentioned above, ciiing that due procedures were not Bllowed by the Departsnent and ne opportunity of being heard vwas
given 1o the Company. Based on inputs [rom its 1ax expert, the management believes that the likelihood of any liability {in relation 1o service tax dues. interest and penally)
devolving on the Company is nof probable and thus, no adjustment is considered necessary in (hese financial statements at this st

41, The Code on Social Security. 2020 {*Code'} relating lo employee benefits during employment and post employinent benefits received Presidential assent in Seplember 202
The Cede has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the dale on which the Code will come irto effect has not been notified. The Company witl assess the impact of
the Cede when it comes inlo effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

42, Revenue from Contracts with Custemers

Assets and liabititivs refated to contracts with customers
Deseription As ot Maech 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
No-eurrvent Curvent Non-current Current

Cantract liabikities refated to sale of goads
Advance from customers - 1.34 - 0.04

Cuntract veceivables related to safe uf goods
Trade receivables - - . -

Significant changes In contract assets and linbilities :
There has been no significant changes in contact assets/contract Habilities during the year

Revenue recogitised In relation ta contract liabilkties

Ind A8 115 also requires disclosure of major changes on account of revenue recognised in the reponing period from the contract liability balance at the beginning of the

period and other changes.
Description Far the year Fav the year ended
ended March 31,2028
Mairch 31, 2022

Opening balanee 0.64 0.39
Addition during the year 2325 8.88
Revenue recounised dusing (he year {22.75) (8.63)
Closing halance 1,14 0.64

Disaggregation of revenue

Revenue arises only from the sale of traded poods e
A




Dellst Doty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : LS2599DL2O0OPTC191963)
Notes to Fimancial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022
(Amounat In Rupees erore, unless atherwise stated)
43. Other disclosures required as per Schedule 111
{i} The Company has not been declared as wiliful defaulter by any bank o financial institution or any other lender,
{if) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction, which is yet to be registered with Registear of Companies. beyond (he statutary period prescribed
under the Companies Act. 2013 and the riles made thereunder.

{iii} The Company has nol entered into any transaetion which has not been recorded in the books of accousl. that has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the [ncome Tax Act. 1961).

{iv) The Company has not traded or invested in erypto currency or virtual currency ducing the year.

(v) The Company does not have any Benami property and further, no proceedings have been initiated or are peading against the Company. in this regard,

(vi) The Company has not ensered into any transactions with struck off companies, as detined under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereundler,

(vii} The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to atty other personis} or entity(ies). including foreign entities {Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the latennediary shall:

(a} directly or indirectly Iend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on bebalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries} or

(b} provide any puarantee, securily or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(viii) The Company has not given any loans and advances which are either repayable on demand er without speciting any terms or period of repayment,

(Hhis space has been imentionellv left blank)
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Dellii Duty Free Services Private Lingted {CIN ; US2399DL2009PTC 21963}
Notes to Finnciad Statenents for the year ended March 31, 2622

(Amaunt in Rupees crore, nuless otherwise stated)

44, The Company’s operations Tor the year ended March 31, 2021 have been adversely impacted by lhe outbreak of COVID 19 pandemic owing te lockdowns and travel
relaled resirictions announced by the Government of India (also re ler note 393, Accordingly figures for the current year are not comparable with those for the previous vear,

As per our reporl of even dale atlached Forand on belalf of the Buard of Directors of
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLIY reihl Duty Free Services Private Limited
Chartered Accountants
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